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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Revenue increased by 2.5% to RMB64.1 million
e Gross loss was RMBO0.4 million

e Gross loss margin was 0.6%

e |oss for the year was RMB230 million

e Loss per share was RMB7.7 cents

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The Group had recorded a loss of RMB229.76 million in 2018, which
is approximately 80.05% less as compared with that of 2017 (loss of
RMB1,151.74 million). This year’s loss was mainly due to the continuous
adverse impacts on the Group by the external policies and environment,
and the impact of suspended production as plants were damaged by the
natural disaster at the end of 2017 and the impact of a failure of smooth
transfer and operation concepts within the Group arising from the process
of handover of job duties between new and old management.

During the reporting period, the total revenue of the Company increased by
2.54% to RMB64.12 million. The total loss after tax was RMB229.76 million,
among which, the one-off extraordinary loss was RMB189.65 million and
the depreciation amount was RMB14.77 million.

Pharmaceutical Products Business

During the year under review, the pharmaceutical products segment
recorded a revenue of RMB6.10 million, accounting for approximately
9.53% of the Group’s total revenue.

Other General Trading Business

The Group commenced other general trading business in 2017. Any trading
other than pharmaceutical products are included into this segment. During
the year under review, other general trading segment recorded a revenue
of RMB52.73 million, accounting for approximately 82.22% of the Group’s
total revenue. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the trading
products mainly included electronic components, electric appliances, and
fitness equipment.

Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in China in 2017. The
Group targeted at industrial manufacturers, hospitals and health industry
related entities as its customers to expand its finance leasing business. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue generated by this segment
amounted to approximately RMB5.30 million, accounting for approximately
8.27% of the Group’s total revenue. Short-term lease receivables and
long-term lease receivables were RMB91.31 million and RMB9.03 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Pharmaceutical products business

Although the Company has disposed of Fuzhou Pharmaceutical Company*
(f& )N B5 3 B[R A A]) engaging in pharmaceutical production, in the
meantime, all of the land assets, plants and most of the production
equipment of another company — Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (FBEE =2 % ¥ 5 [R A7) have been auctioned by the court,
pharmaceutical products business is still the principal business of the
Company and continues to develop. Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited* ({@ kK BRI EEHRAF), is a high-tech enterprise
in Fujian Province. Located in Yongchun County, Quanzhou City, Fujian
Province, it occupies an area of 32,330 sg.m. with a gross floor area for
the plants of approximately 8,311.58 square metres, in which the GMP
workshop has an area of 3,681 square metres. Fujian Yongchun owns
5 drug registration series ( 2 & #it 3257 ) and produces 5 types of oral
medicine, including Yangpi San (& &), Sangi panax notoginseng
capsules ( =t B %) and phentolamine mesylate tablets ( FF i B B) &
R A7) . It will become the new base for pharmaceutical production
of the Company which intends to transfer part of the production of oral
pharmaceutical products of Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* (#&3&
= BB EBR AR to Fujian Yongchun in order to expand the production
scale of the oral pharmaceutical products of Fujian Yongchun.

Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* ({8 =B &% F R A 7)) currently
retains 120 drug registration series (%% & #it £ 32 5% ) and part of the
uncollateralized equipment. As Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* still
has huge bank liabilities, its major assets were auctioned by the court on
15 March 2019, resulting in a drastic change in operating foundation. The
management of the Company is still in the course of discussion for various
possibilities to deal with Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd* (1gi& = & %%
%), including but not limited to disposal, restructuring and liquidation.

On 29 March 2019, the Company obtained the Medical Operations Permit
(Wholesale), Medical Operation Quality Management System Certifications
(GSP) and Food Operations Permit through the acquisition of Fujian Zhixin
Pharmaceutical Company Limited* ({82 ={z B &5 R 2 7)) (“Fujian
Zhixin”). In the future, the Company will act as a sales agent nationwide
for the herbal medical materials, Chinese herbal medicine, Chinese
patent medicine, chemical drug preparations, antibiotic preparations,
biochemical pharmaceuticals, biological products, healthcare products
and food products. The capacity of the Company on pharmaceutical sales
will be stepped up by the acquisition of such pharmaceutical company.
Not only can the Company sell our pharmaceuticals through the sales
network of Fujian Zhixin* ({8 £ {5 ), but also act as a sales agent to
sell pharmaceuticals and healthcare products from other pharmaceutical
companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Zhejiang Sanai Biotechnology Company Limited* CHT/T = B £ WRHT AR
‘A A]) , a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, launch a project on a
plant factory at the end of 2018, in which an indoor plant cultivation factory
with an area of approximately 2,000 square metres will be constructed,
where it will adopt LED lighting and automatic water circulatory system to
cultivate a high value-added medicinal herb called Taiwan anoectochilus (&
#R3EZEHT) on stereoscopic cultivation racks. The expected total investment
of such project is about RMB30 million. The model of plant factory is an
emerging planting method with an advantage of producing quality medicinal
herbs in a stable output. Upon implementation of the project, the Company
can provide high quality fresh herb of Taiwan anoectochilus as well as
pharmaceuticals and food products containing Taiwan anoectochilus to the
market in the future, which is expected to generate favourable economic
benefits.

Precision Medicine Business

Genetic testing: The Company has cooperated with Yangtze Delta Region
Institute of Tsinghua University in Zhejiang for a precision medicine research
and development centre. The Group is committed to developing in the
realms of precision testing, genome editing, cell therapy, regenerative
medicine and the research and development of targeted drugs to conduct
research and product development, and provision of services. The
Company recently acquired a biotechnology company which is primarily
engaged in the provision of services including genetic testing and molecular
diagnostic testing. The biotechnology company operates a laboratory
with a legal business license in Hong Kong, providing services comprising
non-invasive prenatal diagnosis (NIPD), tumor genetic screening, DNA
testing and paternity testing. Genetic testing is a prerequisite for precision
medicine. On this basis, the Company will further expand businesses in the
field of precision medicine.

General Trading Business

The Company will gradually reduce the sales of trading products in the
future and will focus to deploy its capital mainly for business development of
the pharmaceutical and precision medicine sectors.

Finance leasing business

Since its establishment and development in 2017, Union Development
Finance Lease (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (B¢& 2 REREHE OOF
) BRAR]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
achieved initial results and continued to contribute operating profits to the
Group. In the future, on the basis of a stabilized business platform, the
Company will develop leasing services of medical devices and rehabilitation
equipment which is complimentary to the Group’s existing pharmaceutical
products business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved a total revenue
of RMB64.12 million, representing an increase of 2.54% as compared to
RMB62.53 million in 2017, and gross loss margin was 0.55% (2017: gross
loss margin 90.79%). The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB229.76 million (2017: loss of RMB1,151.74 million).
Loss for the year decreased due to significantly less amount of impairment
loss on goodwill, property, plant and equipment, land use right and amount
due from an associate as compared with 2017. The basic loss per share
was RMB7.7 cents (2017: RMB47.8 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB17.75 million (2017: approximately RMB61.73 million)
and most cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the
year under review was mainly due to the normal operating loss incurred by
the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s secured bank loans which were
secured by land use rights and property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB233.79 million (2017: RMB281.94 million). The loans
were denominated in Renminbi, carried interest at fixed rates ranging
from 4.6% to 6.3% (2017: 4.6% to 6.3% respectively) per annum and are
repayable within 1 year. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purpose.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcements dated 8 January 2019 and
dated 22 March 2019, the certain pledged properties have been sold at the
total price of RMB78,000,000 during an auction conducted by the People’s
Court of Jianyang District, Nanping City ( 52k = A RABT) on 15
March 2019, the proceeds of which, net of reasonable auction expenses to
be charged by the People’s Court of Jianyang District Nanping City, will be
wholly used to settle part of the secured bank loans of RMB233.79 million
as mentioned above.

The Group reviewed the capital structure by using gearing ratio. The gearing
ratio represents the total debt, which includes trade and other payables and
secured bank loans of the Group, divided by total equity of the Group. The
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 395% as at 31 December
2018 (2017: approximately 135%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group conducted its business
transactions principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group did not have any foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose. Therefore, the
Group was not exposed to any material interest and exchange risks.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposal of Investments
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had no significant
acquisition of investment.

On 27 December 2018, pursuant to the announcement on “disposal of
shares of a subsidiary”, the Company has disposed of 100% shareholding
interests in “Hong Kong Sanai Health Care Products Company Limited” and
its 100% owned PRC subsidiary “Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited” to an independent third party.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Number and Remuneration of Employees

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group employed approximately
230 employees (2017: 285 employees) with a staff cost of approximately
RMB13.04 million (2017: approximately RMB17.02 million). The Group
determines staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary
scales, individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages,
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options, are
reviewed on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant capital
expenditure of the Group for property, plant and equipment (2017:
approximately RMB204.51 million).

Assets pledged by the Group

At 31 December 2018, land use rights with a net book value of
approximately RMB3,827,000 (2017: RMB6,040,000) and property, plant
and equipment with a net book value of approximately RMB27,431,000
(2017: RMB28,547,000) were pledged to a bank as collateral against the
bank loans of RMB 233,792,000 (2017:RMB281,942,000).

Investment held by the Group
Please refer to notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of the investments held by the Group.

On-going Litigation

On 27 March, 2018, Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (&
M=BBEAFR A7) (“Fuzhou Sanai”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, filed a civil law suit (the “Litigation”) with Mawei District
People’s Court in Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, China against Antu County
Guanghui Chinese Medicine Technology Development Company Limited
(ZBE%EER MR ZERAR QA (‘Antu Guanghui”) in relation to
a contract disputes for a claim amount of RMB94,815,000, together with
related interests and costs. On 30 March 2018, the Litigation was accepted
by the Intermediate People’s Court of Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, China.
For more details of the Litigation, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 20 April 2018. This litigation was released from the Group
upon the disposal of Fuzhou Sanai in 2018.

Contingent Liabilities
Save and except for those disclosed herein, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Dividend
The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practice, such that the interests of our shareholders,
customers, employees as well as the long term development of the
Company can be safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board and
three board committees under the Board, namely the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”).
The Board stipulates the terms of reference of all board committees
and specifies therein clearly the powers and responsibilities of the board
committees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) during the year ended 31 December
2018 as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code in respect of the roles of chairman (“Chairman”) and
chief executive officer (“Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company as further
elaborated below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the Company’s own code for securities transactions by
its Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and
each Director confirmed that during the year ended 31 December 2018,
they fully complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of eight members,
with three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Chengging, Ms. Hung Hoi
Lan and Professor Zhang Rongqging, one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Xiu Yuan and four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tu
Fangkui, Mr. Wang Zihao, Mr. Long Jun and Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor. All
Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise, and have
exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics and integrity.
The biographical details of each Director are shown on the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report. There is no
relationship among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies and policies of the
Group, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the
Company’s performance and oversight of the works of management.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and report to them at general

meetings. The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategy and to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance
of the Company. The Chairman focuses on the Company’s strategy and is
responsible for chairing and managing the efficient operation of the Board
and ensuring that all key issues are considered by the Board in a timely
manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion
in the agenda whenever they consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings
are dispatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the
meeting. Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any,
in any proposals or transactions to be considered at Board meetings and
abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation. The Board meets at least 4 times a year, at approximately
quarterly intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each
period, material investments and other matters of the Company that require
the resolution of the Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to
improve attendance when individual Director cannot attend the meeting in
person. Opinions of the independent non-executive Directors are actively
sought by the Company if they are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”); all Directors have access to Board
papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate information
in a timely manner; this enables the Board to make informed decision on
matters placed before it.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the year under
review, the Board formulated the terms of reference on the corporate
governance duties and performed corporate governance duties in
accordance with the terms of reference. To be specific, the Board mainly
performed the following corporate governance duties during the year under
review:

o To review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

o To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees; and

o To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD ATTENDANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board had convened 12 Board
meetings and 1 general meeting.
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Attendance records of the Directors are as follows:

BERZHFERENT:

Number of
attendance of
Board meetings

Number of
attendance of
general meetings

Directors EEEg; BRRRE
25 R B R
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Chengaing (Chairman) BREKEE 5o (£ /E) 12/12 1/1
Ms. Hung Hoi Lan R 12/12 1/1
Professor Zhang Rongging REBHIT 12/12 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Xiu Yuan (appointed with effect BERAE (R N\F 1/1 0/0

from 5 November 2018) +—ARBHRERT)

Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Mr. Tu Fangkui BA# %YL

Mr. Wang Zihao FFEEE

Mr. Long Jun [EE %4

Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRPARGTE(BEZT—N\F
(appointed with effect from 5 October 2018) +HARAEERT)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Xiu Yuan was appointed with effect from 5 November 2018. Only 1 Board meeting

was held and no general meeting was held during his appointment period.

) Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor was appointed with effect from 5 October 2018. Only 1
Board meeting was held and no general meeting was held during his appointment
period.

Q) Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors should also attend general meeting. Mr. Xiu
Yuan, the non-executive Director, and Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor, the independent
non-executive Director, did not attend the general meeting of the Company because
their appointment were effective after the general meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of an issuer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same person. The Company does not
at present have the role of Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Chen Chengging is
the Chairman responsible for overseeing the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person facilities the execution of the Company’s
business strategies and maximizes the effectiveness of its operations. On
the other hand, there are four independent non-executive Directors on the
Board, all of them possess adequate independence and therefore the Board
considers the Company has provided sufficient protection to the balance
between its interests and the interests of its shareholders. The Board shall
review the structure from time to time and shall consider the appropriate
adjustment should suitable circumstance arise.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In full compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
appointed four independent non-executive Directors, at least one of whom
has appropriate professional accounting qualifications or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a term between one and two years. The appointment
contracts will be renewed every year and they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. The responsibilities of the non-executive
Directors include, without limitation: regular attendance at meetings
of the Board and of board committees of which they are members;
provision of independent opinions at meetings of the Board and other
board committees; resolution of or taking the lead where there is potential
conflict of interests; service on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and nomination
committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the Company; and scrutinizing and
monitoring the performance of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August 2013 whereas
such Policy states the method by which the board diversity can be reached.

To the knowledge of the Company, the fact that the Board has become
gradually more and more diversified has helped the Company achieved its
strategic objective and has provided support for the Company’s sustainable
development.

The Company aims to achieve Board diversity by taking into consideration
of various factors including the age, culture and educational background,
race, professional experience, knowledge and other qualifications. When the
Company determines the best combination for the members of the Board, it
will, from time to time, take into consideration of its own business mode and
specific needs.

The Nomination Committee has designed measurable goals according
to four major aspects (namely, the age, professional qualification, term
of service and independence) for purposes of implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and considered that these goals have been achieved
satisfactorily during the year. The relevant goals will be reviewed from time
to time so as to ensure its appropriateness and its progress for achieving
such goals. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time (if appropriate) to ensure that such Policy continues
to be effective.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures of
the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director of a listed company to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in a wide range
of professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Companies Ordinance/Act and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in
Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written training materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; during the year under review,
the Company Secretary also organised and arranged seminars on the latest
development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to
assist them in discharging their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with the requirement
of the CG Code on continuous professional development during the period
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018:
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Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules and regulations

Accounting/Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

EER /AR A &t/ 0%/ EE
BB 2 &FRA REMBER
Attend Attend
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
Directors Materials Briefing Materials Briefing
HERE/ HERE/
] MEMH EE= BEMH GE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chen Chengqing (Chairman) BRELE () v
Ms. Hung Hoi Lan MR LT v v
Professor Zhang Rongaing REBEHRE v v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Xiu Yuan BREAE
Independent non-executive Directors BUHTES
Mr. Tu Fangkui EhBEE 4
Mr. Wang Zihao ITFREE v v
Mr. Long Jun EE 54 4 v
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRI & v
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance for
all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the year
2018/2019. The insurance covers them against costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are allocated
to three committees which operate under defined terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the Audit
Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31 December
2018 were as follows:
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EENRGRBEER
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ExZ8g
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BEEZES REDREBEERT ZBEEE
Bk

BEREES

ARBERELTRAUIKNIEREZEGTE
EEEHBEEE - REE_T-N\F+ A
=+—HLEFE ERZEGZAREEEN
g s

Directors Number of attendance of
o R
Independent non-executive Directors BAEHTES

Mr. Wang Zihao (Chairman) FFREE(EE) 5/5
Mr. Tu Fangkui BA#EE 5/5
Mr. Long Jun fEEEE 5/5
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRI SR ST A 0/0

(appointed with effect from 5 October 2018)

Note: Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor was appointed with effect from 5 October 2018 and no
Audit Committee meeting was held during his appointment record.

Each member can bring to the committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Company as each of them possesses management
experience in the accounting profession or commercial sectors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Company’s financial reporting system, financial
statements and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee also
monitors the appointment of the Company’s external independent auditor.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for inspection
on the Company’s website at www.1889hk.com and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year under
review, five meetings were held. For the meeting held on 27 March 2018,
the Audit Committee discussed and reviewed the issues relating to (1) profit
warning for the year ended 31 December 2017, (2) delay in publication of
annual results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2017 and (3)
postponement of board meeting, and with recommendation to the Board for
further approval. For the meeting held on 20 April 2018, the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 and the Company’s internal control system reports were
reviewed, and with recommendation to the Board for further approval. For
the meeting held on 31 August 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the
consolidated financial statement of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2018 with recommendation to the Board for further approval.
The annual results announcement and annual report of the Group and the
reports on the Company’s internal control and risk management systems
for the year ended 31 December 2018 had also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee in the meeting held on 31 March 2019, with no disagreement
among all Audit Committee members, and with recommendation to the
Board for approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee and their attendance records for the year ended
31 December 2018 were as follows:

EREREERSFELRITRMAGH REE
FA RARARETTRAREZ - R _F—N\F
ZAZTHERBTHNER L ERZE SRR
NMERATEBRERE: WEBE-_T—tF+=
A=Z+—RILEFEZRBFEE  QEET#
BE_ZtHE+-_A=T"HFEZFE
EERM RQEESGALH YNESS
HE UGFHE-—SHAE-RZZT—N\FHA
“tREBTHERL ERREEENTAR
ABE T —tFT -_A=t—BIMBFE
ZRAVBRERRA R Z AR RS RS
VRABEEHRE UFHE-—SHE-R-F
—NFENA=ZT-BETHNEHEL EXEE
EEMARBBE-_T—N\FXA=1+AL
NERZHZEMBHMRLNEETGHRE  UF
HE—HPHE-BE_T-N\F+_A=1+—
BIEFEZAREFERE M FERE N
ARBzANERERARERRABRENE
HEZZEER _T—NF=A=+—A802
SR LEN AERZEEMAKE ZHLE
B WAEFSHERS UiFtE-

FEEs
AARIBREELMHRAKIFHEE ST E
ERETHEREEE -HE_T—N\F+=A
S+—HLFE FHEEe2ARRESH
BRI ¢

Directors Number of attendance of
25 R B
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Chengging R A B 5T A 3/3
Professor Zhang Rongging REBHE 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors BFHITES

Mr. Wang Zihao (Chairman) TFxuE(FE) 3/3
Mr. Tu Fangkui BA#EEE 3/3
Mr. Long Jun BELLE 3/3
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The Board has delegated the authority to the Remuneration Committee
to review and recommend to the Board the compensation scheme of the
Directors as well as that of the senior management staff.

The main function of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
to oversee the Company’s remuneration packages, bonus and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management and establish
a transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Board shall provide sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has conducted
3 meetings. The Remuneration Committee assisted the Board to review
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of newly
appointed executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available for
inspection on the Company’s website at www.1889hk.com and the website
of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference. The composition of the Nomination Committee and their
attendance records for the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:
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Executive Director HITES

Mr. Chen Chengajing (Chairman) PR SE4 (£/E) 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors BAFEBITES

Mr. Wang Zihao FFREE 3/3
Mr. Tu Fangkui BFEEE 3/3
Professor Zhang Rongging REBHE 3/3
Mr. Long Jun BEEEE 3/3
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The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals who
are suitably qualified to become members of the Board, and to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. Having regard to
the independence and quality of nominees, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company and reviewing the
objectives set for implementing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy as
well as the composition and diversity of the Board. The Board shall provide
sufficient resources to the Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. The
retiring Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has conducted
3 meetings in which the members of Nomination Committee performed
appraisal of newly appointed executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, recommended the Board to appoint them as Directors
and some of them as members of Board committees and reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. During the year
under review, the Nomination Committee also monitored the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website at
www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from
Board members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members. The factors which would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate of director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board member, diversity
of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance matters of the
Company. The Board has established its terms of reference, pursuant
to which the duties of the Board include, inter alia, () to develop, review
and implement the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance; (i) to review, monitor and implement the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iii)
to review, monitor and implement the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group; (iv)
to develop, review, monitor and implement the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and (v) to
review and implement the compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Senior management’s remuneration paid by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 falls within the following band:
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Number of individuals

AH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 %7 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,0007% 7T 1

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018 was as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges their responsibility for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Board
acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing
these consolidated financial statements, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
management is of the view that the Group will continue as a going concern
for the reasons stated as set out in the paragraph “Multiple uncertainties
relating to going concern” on page 40 of this report. The Directors are
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose the
financial position of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, has presented their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out on pages 39
to 41.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control
and has ultimate responsibilities for overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis. The Board is also committed to review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.

The Group established the risk management and internal control systems
with aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision
making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code, the Board has engaged an independent professional firm as an
outsourced internal auditor to facilitate the Group’s internal audit function to
be equipped with adequate resources and to conduct reviews as required
by the Stock Exchange and to assist the Audit Committee and the Board
to perform review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018 at least
annually.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group has conducted an annual risk assessment which identified
respective strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance
risks for each of the major business operations of the Group. Risk factors
were analyzed and consolidated at the Group level. Based on the risk
assessment results following a risk based methodology audit approach,
an internal audit plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into
respective annual internal audit projects and manage the risks accordingly.

An annual review was performed by the independent professional internal
auditor firm according to the internal audit plan with a view to assisting
the Audit Committee and the Board to evaluate the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The review also covered the compliance
of code provisions as set out in the CG Code and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls at entity and
operational levels. The Company has taken further steps to enhance its
risk management and internal control systems according to some control
weaknesses that were found during risk assessment and examination of the
internal control system and strengthened the implementation of all the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has established procedures in handling and dissemination
of inside information in an accurate and secure manner to avoid possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group. Release of inside
information is subject to the approval of the Board. Unless duly authorized,
all staff members of the Company shall not communicate inside information
to any external parties and shall not respond to market speculation and
rumours. In addition, all external presentation materials or publications must
be pre-vetted before release.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established
and maintained by the Group, and the work performed by the internal and
external auditors, the Audit Committee and the Board performed an annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018 and are of the view
that the Group has maintained effective and adequate risk management and
internal control systems during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lock Kwong Hang, Simon, the company secretary of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018, undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training during the year under review in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that shareholders’ rights should be well
respected and protected. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communications with shareholders on its performance through interim
reports, annual reports, general meetings and public disclosure on the
Company’s website (www.1889hk.com) and the website of the Stock
Exchange, so that they may make an informed assessment for their
investments and exercise their rights as shareholders. The Company also
encourages shareholders’ participation through general meetings or other
means. Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary to the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 1309, 13th Floor, West
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at general meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to
be put forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 1309, 13th Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The requisitionists
must state in their request(s) the objects of the extraordinary general
meeting to be convened, and such request must be signed by all the
requisitionists. Upon receipt, the Company will verify the requisitionists’
particulars and if the request is in order, the Company will convene the
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with its articles of association.

CHANGE OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there was no significant change to the articles
of association of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chengqing, aged 41, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and an entrepreneur with more than 20 years of experience in
business management in the PRC. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of
Guizhou Changtong Cable Co., Ltd., the vice president of Pingba District
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the executive vice president of
Anshun Zhejiang Federation of Commerce, a member of Pingba District
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
the vice president of Guizhou Wenzhou Federation of Commerce. He was
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 17 February 2017. He
is interested or deemed to be interested in an aggregate of approximately
27.37% of the total number of issued shares in the Company as at 31
December 2018.

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan, aged 29, graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with
a bachelor’s degree in marketing in 2011. She later obtained a master
degree of science in hospitality with tourism management from University
of Birmingham in 2013. She started operating wine business ran by her
family during her studies in the United Kingdom and has joined the business
development department of Hilton Beijing since 2013. She was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 17 February 2017.

Professor Zhang Rongqing, aged 62. He graduated from Suzhou Medical
College in 1982 with a Bachelor degree of medicine and received PhD of
animal physiology and biochemistry in Nanjing Agricultural University in
1993. Prof. Zhang has worked as professor in Tsinghua University since
1998, and he has been the associate dean of School of life Science in
Tsinghua University. He is currently a director of the Institute of Biomedical
Research in Yangtze Delta Region of Tsinghua University in Zhejiang, deputy
director of the Teaching Guidance Committee of Biological Technology and
Bio-engineering of the Ministry of Education, the member of the 3rd and
4th Advisory Group of Experts of the “973” Plan in the field of agriculture
of the Ministry of Science and Technology. Prof. Zhang has received many
awards and patents in science and technology. He is a well-known senior
expert in the field of marine biochemistry & molecular biology, marine natural
drug & gene engineering, and marine biological enzyme. Prof. Zhang has
been an independent director of Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
002399), since May 2014. He is also an independent director of Shandong
Oriental Ocean Sci-tech Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002086), since April 2017.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xiu Yuan, aged 36, graduated from the Economic Management of Xian
Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army. Now he is the
general manager of XiuZheng Pharmaceutical Group Marketing Co., Ltd.
At the same time, he served as the Member of the Young Entrepreneur
Committee of the All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, the
director of the 11th China Youth Entrepreneurs Association, and the
founding director of the China Youth Entrepreneur “00 School” club. Mr. Xiu
was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 5 November
2018 for a term of two years.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHNEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tu Fangkui, aged 56, is the chairman of Shenzhen Farad Electric Co.,
Ltd with more than 20 years of experience in business management. Mr.
Tu obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He is a member of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce and the vice president of Shenzhen Electric Trade
Association. Mr. Tu was awarded as young science and technology experts
of Shenzhen.

Mr. Wang Zihao, aged 35, a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Queen’s University of Belfast in United Kingdom in
2006 and obtained a Master of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law from
University of Hong Kong in 2016. Mr. Wang served in KPMG Advisory
(China) Limited for over 5 years, provided advisory services to various listed
company and large-scaled state-owned enterprises. Mr. Wang has been
working in Tencent Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited since 2013.
Mr. Wang was the account specialist member in China Emissions Exchange
since 2015.

Mr. Long Jun, aged 45, graduated from Peking University Guanghua
School of Management with an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree in 2009. Mr. Long has served as the vice president and managing
partner in Focus Media (China) Holding Co., Ltd. a subsidiary of Focus
Media Information Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002027.SZ), since February 2014. He has
more than 15 years of management experience in the media industry.

Mr. Chan Chung Yin Victor, aged 57, obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Hong Kong in 1984. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a
Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1991 and has over 26 years
of experience in commercial law, and civil and criminal litigations. He is now
the principal of his own solicitors firm, Messrs. Victor Chan & Co. Mr. Chan
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1239), with effect from 28 September
2018 and On Real International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8245), with effect from
16 January 2019. Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director
of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:907) during the period
between September 2018 and January 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhu Shengqin, aged 52, is the General Manager of Fujian Sanai. He
had over over 26 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He
joined the Group in 2002.

Ms. Zhang Meifeng, aged 58, is the Chairman of Fujian Sanai and Fuzhou
Sanai. She had over 37 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.
She joined the Group in 1981.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Zhou Chen, aged 37, was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company with effect from 11 January 2019. Mr. Zhou has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and corporate
finance. Mr. Zhou was appointed as an executive director of China
Graphene Group Limited (“China Graphene”) (Stock Code: 63), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 1 February 2018.
He then was appointed as the company secretary of China Graphene
on 1 March 2018. On 1 December 2017, Mr. Zhou was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings
Limited (“Wuzhou International”) (stock code: 1369), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was subsequently re-designated
as an executive director of Wuzhou International on 7 August 2018. Mr.
Zhou is the Chief Financial Officer of Yamada Green Resources Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the
“SGX”) since January 2018. He was also the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of Asia Fashion Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the SGX from October 2015 to June 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Zhou was the
General Manager of Investment and Corporate Finance of Bayon Airlines
Holdings Limited, the Enterprise Risk Manager and Internal Control Manager
of Tee International Limited which is listed on the SGX, and the Finance
Manager of a Singapore private company where he was in charge of
accounting and the initial public offering process. Between 2008 and 2013,
Mr. Zhou worked at a local audit firm in Singapore and was responsible for,
inter alia, the audit of Chinese companies listed on the SGX. Mr. Zhou is a
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and
the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. He is also an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zhou was awarded
a bachelor’'s degree of science in applied accounting by Oxford Brookes
University in July 2008 and an advanced diploma in accountancy by Xiamen
University in December 2016.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The Directors would like to present their annual report together with the
audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 42 to
43.

The Board of Directors do not suggest declaring any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil) to the shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
12 June 2019 to Monday, 17 June 2019 (both days inclusive). In order to be
qualified for attending the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11 June 2019.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB205,556,000 (2017: RMB155,870,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year under review
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 45 and
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year under review are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of associations or the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares in the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year under review and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chengaing

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan
Professor Zhang Rongqging

(Chairman)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xiu Yuan (appointed with effect from 5 November 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Fangkui

Mr. Wang Zihao

Mr. Long Jun

Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor (appointed with effect from 5 October 2018)

Mr. Xiu Yuan will retire from office in accordance with Article 86(3) of the
Articles of Association of the Company and, being eligible, has offered
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan and Mr. Wang Zihao will retire from office by rotation
in accordance with Article 87(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management are set out
on pages 23 to 25 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (including Directors standing for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has entered into any contract of
service, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the executive directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
remuneration of the non-executive directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee. The details of emoluments of the directors are
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has renewed the Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the
year 2018/2019. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the contracts of service entered into with respective Directors, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year under review.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of each of
the Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO:
or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO):and were required pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Directors’ Report

EEERE

ENREREE
BRRAEFNFENFBINREMBRE
B 5E35 -

EERFETRAEBRAR TR EEH
EEIRAD - AERARR 0 R B AV RS ROK
A

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 EZ2RHERT
BABRARBREBEER (EHXREBE
PIEsER S RMERD (TEF LB K
B11) EBXVER) BB 7 - ARBEAL D I (B 4 A5
BIREES RS KD F35216 2 8N AR T
ATHFEZBRLMAZERIORE  HIREE
H REEGPIEXVERSET R E8D1E - HBAA
REARBZ Az EEIAR (BEREBEESK
HEGEPINZFHE  REREERRERS
MEREAR)  RIRBRETARE AR
HMARE MR 2 R FORB AT

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Number of shares Total shareholding
shares options held Interest (Note 3)
(Note 1) A IR HE
Name of director ~ Capacity ROBE AiSEREHAR s ERald
EERE 8 (PFEET) (FI5ES)
Chen Chengging Interest of controlled 836,753,000 (L) 2,800,000 839,553,000 27.37%
corporation (Note 2)
FeR B B EEEERER (MFE2)
Notes: k=2
(1) The letters “L” denotes long position in the shares. (1) [LIERBRO P ZTE -
@) These shares are registered in the name of Cyber Success Global Investments ©) ZEBRMURKELER2EER 2 R RAIRIKIR

Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chen Chengging. Mr. Chen Chengging is
deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Cyber Success Global Investments
Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,067,222,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executives had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code or which were required to be entered in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.

RIREARAT L ARER - RIEES RN E
7] - BRARBE e A R AR IR A A IR A T
A s 2 EBIR A R B R o

@) BREBSLLDRER=-"F—-N\F+=_A=+—
HA R R B #17813,067,222,5000 5t &

BEXREEN R-F—NFt=A=t—
A AAREERBRTRABHEALAT
o AR A (% BB % RS K0 EXV
) 2 1815  ABRIR 15 R 8 %o i £ <7 B
B AR R R A R IR B
RS0 E2 R 2 B RMA i
WRAB

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

29



30

Directors’ Report

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Old Share Option Scheme (as defined below) and the New
Share Option Scheme (as defined below), at no time during the year ended
31 December 2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

ESWBRONEREENER
BREREER E (E& R T30 BB
Z(EBER TN RBEE-ZE-\F+_H
=t —HIEFERERRRE AR R REER
ZHBRRME L EM LA EEA
P 5 BB R 2 R B A fRT L A K A (BB B8 O B £ 3K
R MERHE-

FERRNA DB 2RMD REERGHY
BERKR

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H UTAL(E
ERARBERITHABRIN) RAR RN
AR 1 i B R IR E 5 R B 15455336
BARLER AR FENRRA MO ERR

KRR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of shares (Note 2)
shareholder (Note 1) BLA IR 1
BRERE Capacity BHEE Bk
i 8% (Hi5E1) (KMizE2)
Cyber Success Global Investments Limited Beneficial owner 836,753,000 (L) 27.28%
BIBIRIKIREBR A A EnfBA
Notes: P&
1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the shares. 1) [LIERBRGO P ZiTRE -

() The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,067,222,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

Save for the disclosed above, the Company was not aware of any person
who had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares in
the Company which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) for, among others, the senior management and employees on 8
January 2007, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract, retain and
motivate staff. Details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the Company
adopted another share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
for, among others, the senior management and employees, which serves as
incentives or rewards to attract, retain and motivate staff. The New Share
Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on
21 June 2017 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the operation of the
New Share Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option Scheme, the
Board may grant options to all full-time employees, Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) and part-time employees with
weekly working hours of 10 hours and above, of the Group, substantial
shareholders of each member of the Group, associates of the directors and
substantial shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust
pre-approved by the Board, and any advisor (professional or otherwise)
or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner,
service provider of the Group whom the Board considers, at its sole
discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme (namely, 233,877,250 shares, representing
approximately 7.63% of the Company’s issued shares as at the date of this
annual report), without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. No option may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and to be granted
to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The grant of share options to
a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates requires the approval of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding an independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the share options). Options granted in any 12-month
period to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date
of grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

fR S A R 175

BREST S
ARBAER-_ZZLF-ANRR(EHE
E)BRERERER RGBBETS (150
PtgRt ) - ERRS| BB A B THE
Bk 3R - BRI B F BHN A M
HARMEEI2

BRER-_ZE—EFRNATRABBZEBR
BEARFR (EPRB)SRERERER
R s —BROE 8 ([FiE st 81)) - 1F
RS BB KBS T REIKEI R -5
BT E T —tFARA BT
FHMERER RIFARANBERAE LFE
TRRBRREZ S A BER R LB g
ZIMEF -RENBREAS EFE2E
BIESHBRER TERREAEERERZ
2REE BF (BEBFTESR) RER
TN RIONE KA L2 FBES AEH
BERERFZEERR AEBEEAIKE AT
EERTIERFZHEAN BEFSREIES
AEFRZETEA AREMALE ZERH (X
HoiH M) SKERER - D Hm - e - RIE
AEFP AZLEABA RBHER-

EREARD RIS LU ERT - BRI R
B R K 2 BT R 2 B R E B
BBAD AR MF B ETE 2 AEBITR
1910% ( BN233,877,2500% - PN 5 B Bi# (5
RRNRBEITRD BA7.63%) - TTERIEH
BT8R AR BT EmERESEE
RO EBFITENA AT EERERT
FETHOBRMDEE LRAHAEETEBBER
R AR BB B TARID30% © Wi H Z R
BE BASEMBRETSRDERE -
REEAR DRI B S HEAERT - 1218 A HA
P A A o] MBI A = 33 38 T3 S 2 B AR
TS R BEITRERITRGEE  T5i8
BARBAREBHEBITRMD1% - AES -
BETHRABRTERRRBEESENINMN
B AR BRENEEB Y IFRTES (F
BIEGABEREARANB Y IERITES)#t
S o i PAMEfT 1218 B B AR T £ AR 8
MIEHITEEURE S EMEMBEA ZER
TS R 2 R D& E BIBAR R RE L A H
B B 1TA%190.1%3% 42 {8 £8 85,000,000/ It *
BTN N B R B 2R S At o

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

31



32

Directors’ Report

EEERE

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. A share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme
at any time during the period to be determined and notified by the Board
to each grantee, provided that such period of time shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant. The New Share Option Scheme does
not specify a minimum period for which a share option must be held nor a
performance target which must be achieved before a share option can be
exercised. However, the Board may, at its sole discretion, determine such
terms and impose such other restrictions on the grant of a share option.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the offer date which must be a business day, (i) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

On 24 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, 115,400,000 and 118,000,000 share
options (the “Share Options”) were granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme to grantees respectively. On 7 June, 8 June, 14 June and
19 June 2018, an aggregate of 195,100,000 Share Options were exercised
by grantees under the New Share Option Scheme. The following table
discloses movements in the Share Options during the year:

FEENBRER ABRABEZM1.008TT
AARMEARERE BREATNHESSE
TEBAE AR A2 B BERANRE T ER
PERT B IRFRBERSIT(E - EZ S HIRTBER
R BE®RTF - SERE S  EA TR
PR PT AT AT B B BN SRR
RN EERZEEBIZ - AT EESAREY
2EBBETEBIER U AREERESRTE
HR& - 1TEEBRARRERET BTG
BRAUT=ZEZESE: (REHRH(BEA
BER)ARARDZETE: WBEEHA
A AER S B ZARERGFHKRME: &
(i) A2 B B E 1A ©

R_E—N\FRA-F+WBEER-_ZT—N\FREA
=+ B 115,400,00017 %.118,000,00017 B %
(TR BRBHNBRETE SRR T
ABRARZE—NFEALB - <NANB:
NATHBRANATNAB  ERABIREHE
Rt 217714 $£195,100,00017 BEAGAE - T 3%
BERFRERE

Number of share options
BREHA
Closing
price of
At the shares
At Cancelled 31 December immediately
1 January or lapsed 2018 before the
2018 Granted during Exercised R® date of grant
Category of iy during the year during  ZZE-/\E Date of Exercise Exercise SRR
participant ZE-\fF the year FREE the year TZA grant period price AEA
SEALER -A-H ERRH P ERfTR =+-8 RHAH Es EE  RHOWSE
(HKS) (HKS)
(A7) (B1)
Employees in aggregate - 227,400,000 - (191,100,000) 36,300,000 24Mayand 24 May 2018 to 0.32and 0.32 and
30 May 2018 29 May 2023 0.335 0.335
(Note)
EE8E - 227,400,000 - (191,00,0000 36,300,000 =Z—-N\% —E-)N\% 0.3250.335  0.32:0.335
AAZTME H#AZ{+MmA
KRA=tR Z-E-=%
AAZTAE
(3E)
Non-employees - 6,000,000 = (4,000,000) 2,000,000 30 May 2018 30 May 2018 to 0.335 0.335
in aggregate 29 May 2023
(Note)
FEEAH = 6,000,000 = (4,000,000) 2,000,000 —Z-N\% E-N\fF 0.335 0.335
AA=1A AA=THE
—Eo=f
RAZthA
(HzE)
- 233,400,000 - (195,100,000 38,300,000
Note: The Share Options are not subject to any vesting period. MizE: BEPRREN A {E( &2 B EIATIR o
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DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ emoluments on an individual and named basis
and the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and
12 respectively to the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration
policies of the Group are as follows:

The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the employees is
determined according to their relevant experience, responsibilities,
workload, contributions and years of service in the Group and with
reference to the goals and objectives of the Group;

The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board (or by the
relevant management after consultation with the Board) and may
be provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or the
employees; and

No person participates in the deliberation or approval of his own
remuneration package.

The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:—

U

(i)

)

the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by case basis
of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the Board to
the relevant Directors under their remuneration package; and

the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board and in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules, with share
options under the share option scheme adopted by the Company, as
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part of their remuneration package. g
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEREFRMHED
The information of revenue and purchases attributable to the major REBFERN ARREERS REEREE
customers and suppliers of the Company for the year under review is as ¥ERBEREIANET
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
% %
Revenue from sales of goods HEEmMiEH
or rendering of services PR 7% A4S W &
The largest customer BARF 25.6 36.5
Five largest customers in aggregate AARFEH 75.9 51.0
Purchases EEZE
The largest supplier = AHIER 34.3 75.7
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREERE 89.0 81.8

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted
above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance principles and practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 10 to 22 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During this year, the Group did not make any charitable donations (2017:
Nil).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Based
on specific enquiry made with all Directors, the Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the accounting
period covered by this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or any of their connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to or involved in at the end of the year
under review or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during the year
under review, and no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year under
review or at any time during the year under review.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors had an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict of
interest with the Company during the year under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board has established
an audit committee on 8 January 2007, with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the financial reporting
procedures and internal control and risk management systems and
provides guidance in relation thereto. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Company as well as the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 before recommending to
the Board for approval.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution will be
submitted at the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

There was no change of the Company’s auditor for the past three years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Future Development

The discussion on the Group’s business performance and future
development, being part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the
paragraphs headed “Review of Results”, “Financial Review” and “Business
Prospects” of the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this Annual Report.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The analysis of the Group’s key financial performance indicators, being
part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the paragraph headed “Financial
Review” of the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Our newly launched products may not be well received by the market.
The success of a pharmaceutical company depends, to a large extent,
on whether the products it introduces to the market are well received by
the market. The primary factors which may affect the acceptance of our
products by the market include efficacy, quality and price. In particular,
the introduction of new products requires substantial investment of capital
resources and research and development efforts. If any of our new drugs
is not well received by the market because its efficacy is not as good as
expected, it is too expensive compared to other substitutes, or for any other
reason, we may not be able to recoup the investment we have made in
developing such new drug, in which case our financial condition and results
of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Our Group rely on third parties, such as hospitals, clinics and
pharmacies, in selling our prescription and over-the-counter products.
We rely on different channels in selling our products in China. Our over-
the-counter pharmaceutical products are sold mainly to consumers
through pharmacies. Our prescription pharmaceutical products are sold
mainly to hospitals and clinics for consumption by their patients. There
is no assurance that pharmacies and hospitals and clinics will continue
to stock and prescribe our products over those of our competitors, there
are no contractual restrictions preventing our sales channels from selling
our competitors’ products. If our sales channels treat our competitors’
products more favorably or stop selling our products, and we are unable to
find appropriate substitutes, our business and results of operations may be
materially and adversely affected.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

The pharmaceutical industry is extremely competitive.

Our business is subject to competition from other pharmaceutical
manufacturers. Chinese and international pharmaceutical manufacturers
engaged in the manufacture and sale of substitute or similar products
to ours in China may have more capital resources, better research and
development capabilities and more experience in manufacturing and
marketing. Many of our competitors, including large pharmaceutical
companies and other generic drug manufacturers, have employed various
strategies intended to maximize their market share for previously-patented
products. Competition is likely to intensify if (i) the number of manufacturers
or distributors of substitute or similar products increases due to increased
market demand or increased prices; (i) competitors drastically reduce prices
due to oversupply of products; or (i) competitors develop new products
or substitute products having comparable medicinal applications or
therapeutic effects that may be used as direct substitutes for our products
which are more effective with prices comparable to or lower than our
products.

Our Company is subject to environmental regulations and may be
exposed to liability and potential costs for environmental compliance.

We are subject to the PRC laws and regulations concerning the discharge
of effluent water and solid waste during our manufacturing processes.
We are required to obtain certain clearances and authorizations from
governmental authorities for the treatment and disposal of such discharge.
Any violation of these regulations may result in substantial fines, criminal
sanctions, revocation of operating permits, shutdown of our facilities and
obligation to take corrective measures. Our cost of complying with current
and future environmental protection laws and regulations, and liabilities
which may potentially arise from the discharge of effluent water and solid
waste, may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The government may take steps towards the adoption of more stringent
environmental regulations and there is no assurance that we will be at all
times in full compliance with these regulatory requirements. Due to the
possibility of unanticipated regulatory or other developments, the amount
and timing of future environmental expenditures may vary substantially
from those currently anticipated. If there is any unanticipated change in
the environmental regulations, we may need to incur substantial capital
expenditures to install, replace, upgrade or supplement our pollution control
equipment or make operational changes to limit any adverse impact or
potential adverse impact on the environment in order to comply with new
environmental protection laws and regulations. If such costs become
prohibitively expensive, we may be forced to modify, curtail or cease certain
of our business operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection to the
sustained stable development of enterprises. Striving to strike the best
balance between cost control and environmental protection, the Group
consistently executes the measures of clean production, energy saving,
reducing consumption, etc. The Group also carries out regular reviews
on various environmental protection measures and routine jobs, to ensure
that all environmental protection permission and approval required by the
regulatory authorities of the PRC will be granted.

In the meantime, the Group endeavours to create an environmentally-
friendly work environment to promote the environmental awareness to
employees by encouraging them to use less electricity and paper, and
recycle office supplies and other materials.

The Company shall issue the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
separately in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE COMPANY

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, marketing and
selling of branded prescription and non-prescription drugs as well as
Chinese pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The production of all
pharmaceutical products must comply with the current Good Manufacturing
Practice standard of the PRC, and be approved by the China Food and
Drug Administration. The Group also needs to comply with the Production
Safety Law, Law on Employment Contracts and Company Law of the
PRC. As the Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company is also required to comply with the Listing Rules and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group is not aware of any
occurrence of material breach of laws or regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

The Group acknowledges that as the PRC is in the midst of the critical
period for healthcare system reform, laws, regulations and policies regarding
the healthcare and pharmaceutical industry will be updated frequently.
Hence, it will pay close attention to the updates and timely implement the
measures required by the relevant laws and regulations so as to ensure the
business and operation are free from adverse effects.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain good working relationship
with the employees. The Group provides its directors and senior
management with continuous professional training, including seminars and
workshops, such that the latest changes of regulatory requirements and
corporate governance practices can be introduced. Aiming to raise the
operational efficiency, the Group also organises various pre-employment
and on-the-job trainings to deepen the employees’ understanding of its
business objectives and operation. In the aspect of safeguarding the
occupational safety and health of employees, the Group spares no effort
to provide employees with a safe work environment and enhance their
health and safety awareness. In addition, the Group provides competitive
remuneration, rewards program, retirement and medical benefits to attract
and incentivise employees.

Suppliers

The Group selects the suppliers prudently and requires them to satisfy
certain evaluation criteria, including track records, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to manufacture high-quality products, etc. The
Group has developed long-term collaborative relationship with various
suppliers and endeavours to make sure that they comply with the Group’s
commitment to quality and ethics.

Sales Agents and Distributors

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and drug
stores through sales agents and distributors. The Group requires the sales
agents and distributors to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Group’s marketing policies. The Group also collaborates with the
distributors by providing training for their frontline salespersons to ensure
that they provide high-quality sales services.

Hospitals and Doctors

The pharmaceutical products of the Group are mainly sold to various key
provinces, cities and autonomous regions in the PRC. The Group continues
to organise and participate in promotional activities such as seminars and
pharmaceutical product launch events. The Group also keeps in touch with,
explains and illustrates the clinical application of the Group’s pharmaceutical
products to doctors within the sales network through sales agents and
distributors.

By order of the Board

CHEN CHENGQING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANAI HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited (the “Company”), and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 171,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1. Scope limitation — Recoverability of trade and other receivables

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2018
were trade receivables of RMB22,902,000 and other receivables of
RMB14,270,000 from several debtors. The outstanding receivables
were past due or remained outstanding up to the date of this report.
The directors of the Company considered that no impairment
provision should be made upon their assessment of the recoverability
of the individual debtor balances based on the information available
and current circumstances. However, we were unable to obtain
satisfactory evidence to ascertain if the information available to the
directors of the Company are appropriate for their assessment or
that the current circumstances referred to by the directors of the
Company are relevant to their assessment of impairment provision
on trade and other receivables. Consequently, we were unable to
satisfy ourselves regarding the valuation of the receivable balances
as at 31 December 2018, and to determine whether any adjustment
on allowance for credit loss against these receivables was necessary.
Any adjustments to the conclusion on the recoverability of these
receivables would affect the net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and the Group’s net loss for the year ended 31
December 2018, and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

28

Scope limitation - Multiple uncertainties relating to going
concern

As described in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group reported a net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of RMB229,755,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018. As at the same date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB48,670,000. In addition, the Group’s total
current bank borrowings amounted to RMB233,792,000 whereas
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB17,745,000
only. Moreover, during the year, loan principal repayments and
related interests payments of RMB248,311,000 were not made in
accordance with the repayment schedules pursuant to the bank
facilities agreements and, as a result, the Group has defaulted in
complying with the bank facilities covenants and the banks therefore
have the right to demand immediate repayment of the entire
outstanding balances together with outstanding interests and any
penalties stipulated in the bank facilities agreement. One of the banks
had disposed of the assets pledged by the Group as security for its
facilities under a mandatory auction. These conditions, together with
other matters described in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The directors have been undertaking certain measures as set out
in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements to improve the
Group’s liquidity and financial position. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) whether the ongoing
external facilities will continue to be available to the Group and (ii)
whether the Group is able to generate adequate cash flows from
its operations, the achievability of which depends on the market
environment. Since there are no satisfying evidence for us to verify
the availability of such future financing and the viability of the Group’s
business operations, we disclaim our opinion in this respect. If the
ongoing external facilities were no longer available and the internally
generated cash flows were not forthcoming, the Group would be
unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due, and
it would then be unable to continue as a going concern.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liabilities to any other person for the
contents of this report. However, because of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2019

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Revenue

Cost of sales and services rendered

Gross loss

Other income
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land use rights
Impairment loss on investment in

an associate
Impairment loss on amounts

due from an associate
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Written off of property,

plant and equipment
Written off of inventories
Impairment loss on other receivables
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Loss before taxation

Income tax

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss per share
— Basic and diluted
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The notes on pages 48 to 171 form part of these financial statements.
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Note
B 5E

16
17

21
23
19
18
16
22

23
23

10

13

15

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
64,123 62,534
(64,475) (119,311)
(352) (56,777)
43,413 1,057
196,613 746
(799) (4,739)
(58,896) (39,528)
(15,975) (12,695)
(146,001) (683,326)
(1,197) (27,558)

- (4,795)

- (89,915)

= (107,055)

= (3,121)

= (66)

(9,877) (4,544)
(189,649) (2,540)
(972) =
(183,692) (1,034,856)
(46,063) (116,888)
(229,755) (1,151,744)

RMB(7.7) cents
AR®@T.D

RMB(47.8) cents
AR (47.8)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREREREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of income tax
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

The notes on pages 48 to 171 form part of these financial statements.

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
FAEE (229,755) (1,151,744)
FAHMEEREZE (FE) -
HBRFTEH
HEegegsmoErExR2EE:
MEBINEREFE ZERZR
267 (530)
IN/NCIE 2SN LS
PHEEEERE (229,488) (1,152,274)

) @
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MEARR R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[ihg=3 ARET T AREF T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- HWE k&R 16 30,489 191,263
Land use rights I b A4 17 3,827 7,714
Goodwill (RS 19 - -
Deposits for acquisition of WHEERBEEZ RS
non-current assets 23 59,100 =
Intangible assets BmEEE 18 28,507 =
Interests in an associate i RN L0 ] 21 = =
Finance lease receivables BETHE W FRIE 24 9,027 29,878
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 30(b) - 49,740
130,950 278,595
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 10,914 39,369
Trade and other receivables B SR IA R E M
FE U RIE 23 108,127 83,079
Tax recoverable AT E B IR 30(a) 302 302
Finance lease receivables & 1 & e IR 24 91,305 42,082
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABREZ
profit or loss TREE 26 6,387 =
Loan receivables B R W sk E 25 - 25,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBECEEY 27(a) 17,745 61,725
234,780 252,457
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B EMNFIER
H At &~ /IR 28 48,437 13,916
Secured bank loans BEBIRITER 29 233,792 281,942
Current taxation EHABIIA 30(a) 1,221 1,435
283,450 297,293
Net current liabilities FRBAE (48,670) (44,836)
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERTBHER 82,280 233,759
Non-current liabilities kFBER
Deposit received B iz e 28 5,722 4,640
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEE 30(b) 5,031 9,894
10,753 14,534
Net assets FEE 71,527 219,225
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital A&7 31(b) 28,601 27,009
Reserves s 42,926 192,216
Total equity attributable to RATEE AELEER
owners of the Company 71,527 219,225
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March BER=ZE-—NE=A=+—HBLKESSH &
2019 and signed on its behalf by: RERETE WHATATREES:
Chen Chengging Hung Hoi Lan
FR B S
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITEFE
The notes on pages 48 to 171 form part of these financial statements. FABEIT1ERNM F BN AT R EK 2 — 7B
£
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—FT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAARBARE

Retained

Statutory Non- profits/

Share surplus distributable (accumulated
Share Share option Special Capital reserve  Translation reserve losses) Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve RE reserve 0 REEN/ equity
Bx  ROEE BRERE  GARE  EABE  BRHBE  EXRE  ARBE (RHER) BRs

(note (note (note (note (note (note (note (note

31(b) el 3t 310 AL ) IR 1 L A )
(W3 (W3 (W3 (W3 (M3 (M3 (M3 (W&
si) G SIE)  SIEm) SO SiEM)  Stow)) s
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBIOMD
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-f-A 21,762 1,047,038 19916 (124,106) 53,000 264,197 - 23,752 (67,142 1,238,417
Loss for the year FRER S S S S S > - =] (,151,744) | (1,151,744)
Other comprehensive loss Et2EEE

Exchange differences on translation BERNEBL

of foreign operations ERER - - - - - - (530) - - (530)

Loss and total comprehensive loss FNEERZESBEE

for the year - - - - - - (630) - (1161744 (1152,274)
Shares issued under placement BERERTZRH

(note 3111 (F3E31(0)i) 382 84878 . . . . . . )
Shares issued upon exercise of RTEERERETZ

share option (note 310} 45 (M3100) 145 &6 (19919) . . . . . R
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE-BHEAR (M) - - - - - (786) = = = (786)
At 31 December 2017 and RZF-tFt-A=+-A

1 January 2018 R=Z-N\5-F-H 27,009 1,195,575 - (124,106) 53,000 263,411 (530) 23,752 (1,218,886 219,225
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - S| (@29755)| | (229,755)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EME

Exchange differences on translation BERNEBL

of foreign operations ELER - - - - - - 267 - - 267

Loss and total comprehensive loss FAERR2EFRLE

for the year - - - - - - 267 - (229,755) (229,488)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve HPEERRRER - - - - - 363 - - (363) -
Equity settled share-based payment INEREENRABER

transactions (note 32) 235 (M) - - 10,481 - - - - - - 10,481
Shares issued upon exercise of RiTEBRERETZ

share option (note 31(b)(i) BR1A (FizE31(0)i)) 1,592 59,379 (8,767) - - - - - - 52,204
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE-AWEAR (Hs) - - - 45,850 - (26,745) - - - 19,105
At 31 December 2018 R=F-N\5+-A=t-A 28,601 1,254,954 1,714 (78,256) 53,000 237,029 (263) 23,752 (1,449,004) 71,521
The notes on pages 48 to 171 form part of these financial statements. FBABEIT1ERIM B A BT 2 — &b

yaN
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁlﬁiﬁéﬂ%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Operating activities

Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights
Written off of property,
plant and equipment
Write off of inventories
Dividend income
Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses
Exchange gain, net
Loss on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land use rights
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on amounts due from
an associate
Impairment loss on investment in
an associate
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables

Changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in finance lease receivables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Income tax paid — The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”)

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

KReEs

BRELAT R 1R

RTINS EAE:
FLBUA

AE KA

HEME BEK
;2 Wz
HEHE R Rz e
WE BEERBRE

BILEEH#H
o {5 R A B g
WE - BE KR

TF &M H

LY ON
IS E ARG AR
B3

B 34 W e F 5R
HERLNFEFABSEZ
EREEZER
BRAFEFARREZ
TREEATEED
WE WE K REREESR

T AEREER
BIVAERERRE
EEAE

JiE Yy — PR} BgE 22 R R R0R
AR
R—HEB2ARRE
REEE

25 RKIBEREER
H th fE W SRR E B 1R

HEELRE
FERL,(3Em)

B 5 M URIR I

Hofth fE MR TER A (3 0)
B 5 AN IR R

EL fh & 5 BRIRSE A

0 & 70 & P WRIRIE hn

BEEBME (FR)RE
BN AEH
—FREARKME (THE])

EEEBFE/ (FR) B FE
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
(183,692) (1,034,856)
(1,161) (1,037)
15,975 12,695
(32,458) -
(196,613) (746)
14,765 80,225
= 797
2,256 865

- 66

9,877 4,544

) -
10,481 =
- (466)

1,677 2,111
1,790 -
146,001 683,326
1,197 27,558

= 3,121

- 107,055

- 89,915

- 4,795

972 =
189,649 2,540
(19,293) (17,492)
18,012 (29,780)
5,014 (62,483)
40,570 11,683
(27,472) (72,860)
16,831 (170,932)
(429) (287)
16,402 (171,219)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT AREFT
Investing activities REEH
Interest received B U F 8 875 266
Decrease/(increase) in loan B ERE L (3Em)
receivables 25,000 (25,000)
Dividend received 2R S 9 =
Deposits paid for purchase of REBERDEEENESE
non-current assets (59,100) -
Investment in intangible assets BB AE (28,507) =
Payment for the purchase of BEME BFERRE
property, plant and equipment RN PN - (204,513)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWME- -BKEX
property, plant and equipment RABFT S I 3 =
Settlement of contingent HEEENIARE
consideration payable - (44,643)
Payment for the purchase of EEEATEFABREZ
financial assets at fair value SRMEEZNR
through profit or loss (38,260) S
Proceeds from disposal of HEEATFAEFABREZ
financial assets at fair value CREE SRR
through profit of loss 28,285 39,866
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEN B AR MR
cash disposed of BEHERS 37 (25,024) =
Net cash used in investing RETHFARETHE
activities (96,719) (234,024)
Financing activities REESER
Interest paid [EERAIESA (15,975) (10,725)
Proceeds from issue of new BATH RN P15 58
shares, net of issuance costs (HBREEITAA) 52,204 133,868
Proceeds from new bank loans MIRITERATISRIA 45,306 196,900
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (48,150) (558)
Net cash generated from METEMERESTHE
financing activities 33,385 319,485
Net decrease in cash and RERBEEEYMRDFEHE
cash equivalents (46,932) (85,758)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HWEER
at 1 January HeZEEY 61,725 147,547
Effect of foreign exchange INESBHE
rates changes 2,952 (64)
Cash and cash equivalents R+-ZA=+—HBHER:
at 31 December RIEESEEY 17,745 61,725
Analysis of the balances of ReRBESEENER DN
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents R+tZA=+—H®MES
at 31 December kRS EEY 27(a) 17,745 61,725
The notes on pages 48 to 171 form part of these financial statements. FASEIT1EMM F B AT B HET 2 — 5B
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48

GENERAL

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 March 2006 and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies Law”) and acts as an
investment holding company. Its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 1 February 2007. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-1205,
Cayman Islands and Unit 1309, 13/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong respectively. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are the development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of pharmaceutical products, sales of pharmaceutical
related software, provision of consultancy services, general trading
and provision of finance leasing services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests
in an associate.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand except for per share data. RMB is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 4.

2.

b)

e MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
a net loss of RMB229,755,000 (2017: RMB1,151,744,000),
and as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB48,670,000 (2017: net current liabilities of
RMB44,836,000). These conditions, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of its business.

The directors of the Company have taken steps to improve
the Group’s liquidity and solvency position, having regard to
(i) the forecasted operating cash to be generated for the year
ending 31 December 2019; (i) negotiation with banks for the
restructure of repayment schedules of bank loans so as to
extend the repayment due date for one year; (i) negotiation
for any other possible external financing, including but not
limited to, obtain further loan facilities and raise funds from the
capital market in Hong Kong. The directors are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to meet
its financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the successful and favourable outcomes of the steps being
taken by the directors as described above.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(j)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post- tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post- tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with any other long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
the control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration
is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (that
is, the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior
to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had disposed of directly the previously held
equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are set out below:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 6(f).
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method

= fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCQI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Investments other than equity investments (Continued)

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(t)(v).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
were stated at amortised cost (for impairment see note
2(j) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(recycling). Dividend income from equity investments and
interest income from debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(t).
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from debt
securities were also recognised in profit or loss. When
the investments were derecognised or impaired (see
note 2() — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes, other than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, at the following rates per annum:

3.33% or over the
unexpired term
of lease, if shorter
10%-20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Leasehold improvements 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%

For those impaired property, plant and equipment, including
buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment and plant and
equipment in one of the factories in Jianyang City, Fujian
Province, the PRC, not fully depreciated, depreciation is
provided based on their carrying amount after deducting
impairment provision over the estimated useful life.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties, plant and equipment are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for their intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Internally — generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
(2)(v)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
(2)(j)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note (2)(j)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Product development costs 5 years
Patents 5 years
Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

Y

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

Leased assets (Continued)

i)

i)

iv)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Finance leasing income

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Leasehold land and building for own use

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted for as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
s “land use rights” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[0) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables and loan receivables);

- lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and
derivative financial assets are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (that is, the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEHEX &)
()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEBBEREEREB(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and lease () =ZHMTARHEEEKE
receivables (Continued) ZIEEEE ()

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continueq) A B=ZZFE—/NF—H
— H B AR
(#)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) FFrEEAEEEER

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’'s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured of at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(t)(ii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (that is, the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[0) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[0) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(for example, trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and finance lease receivables. Under
the “incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)] Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate, where the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[0) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continueq)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)] Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment;
- land use rights;
- intangible assets;

S goodwiill;

- deposits for acquisition of non-current assets;
- interests in an associate; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEITEEK (E)

FEBEREERE (&)
(i) EMFREBEEZHE

(1)) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) ()]

(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

(#)

Calculation of recoverable amount — A EAKEIEEE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater BEZAIREIEEET
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value BEATERDENX
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated REEFREERMER
future cash flows are discounted to their present 2@ - ERHEE
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects REAER AR E
current market assessments of the time value of e RE TIRIERER
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where AIERIR KRB EIR
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely [ERNTEA =

independent of those from other assets, the R TTI5 IR T A
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest MRHREEREES
group of assets that generates cash inflows AR 2 5T o i3
independently (that is, a cash-generating unit). BEEZREMEXN
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Recognition of impairment losses — HEERREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss WEEXEMB 2
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash- REELEBUZER
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds E{EBRE KD
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses 5 BN BRRTE
recognised in respect of cash-generating units RBEEE -HE S
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount EEBMERZM
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating EEENE HEL
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the BERIENERE
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or ReEFsEf (&

group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(j)(i)
and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2(t)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note
2(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundble consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(t)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

n)

o)

p)

Q)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised where the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see note 2(1)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note
2()(1).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2(v)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(j)(i).

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q) Employee benefits (Continued)

i)

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to accumulated losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q)

]

Employee benefits (Continued)
i) Share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.

iif) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

S in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of goods
was recognised when the goods were delivered to the
customers’ premises, which was taken to be the point
in time when the customer had accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership, irrespective
of whether the products had been made-to-order or
were standardised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

t)

u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (that is, gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the assets (see 2(j)(i)).

iii)  Service income
Service income is recognised in profit or loss when the
services are delivered.

iv)  Finance leasing income
Finance leasing income, including handling fee income
and interest from finance leasing business, is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

v) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

u)

v)

w)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018

2.

u)

v)

w)

TESHBE (&)

SNEESTE S, (%)
BINETEHERIER 5 BIRITHH
HERBE /AR - BBAR
RIER (BEMR_ZZRFE—
A—RAsz KB EIINERmE
HREANEE)HRRERR
W TEERRE AR -FTE
ARERZERNEMPE KRS
ﬁnrmxl?ﬁi%ﬁ&@gﬁnqj [Rﬁg
R

RNHEBINERR ERANE
2B BZEINETE B
ER%%%J%%Q%% S EH

Eigxs-

BEME

fEERABERREWE 2R
EEVREBRREAEFT A
ERREREIHERRNEE
T FRERMCRZIBEERARE
—abD e R EERAREESE
HAR S8 -

EERARREEREEEEM
X EEEERARETHRE
BEEMARREREGREEMS
BOENEBEREENMERE
ERE DA - SRS ER
BEAARREMREGILEMNS
BBENBRE D EE W ETK
Bk AEERAEEHAL L
BRIk

BEAL

a)  fHEBMATAL BIZALH
FZATREE D H R EERK
SEALEGHE

i) 22 i) 2k 3£ [/ % i AR
£5:

i) HAKBEEERFY
&3

iy  RAEEHIAEE
REAINEEER
RS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

w) Related parties (Continued)
b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i)

Vi)

vil)

vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provide key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

X)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Board of
directors (“Board”), being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard
(*HKAS”) 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Properties
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group'’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to the contracts that are not completed at 1
January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

= Sale of pharmaceutical products
- Provision of finance leasing services
- Sale of products other than pharmaceutical products

The Group has performed an assessment on the impact on the
adoption of HKFRS 15 and concluded that no material financial
impact exists, and therefore no adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 is required. Accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in note
2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognised the
relevant revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities under
other payable as receipt in advance in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities; and 2) expected credit losses (‘ECL”) for financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, that is, applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 January 2018. The difference between the carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 is recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information which may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 2.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the Group'’s
financial assets as at 1 January 2018 based on the fact and
circumstances that existed at that date. The application of HKFRS 9
in the current year has no material impact on the classification and
measurement of financial assets.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, trade receivables have been assessed individually with
outstanding significant balances and collectively using a provision
matrix for the remaining balances, which is grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the historical observed default rates
adjusted for forward-looking estimates that is available without undue
costs or effort.

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables and bank balances and cash, are assessed on a
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group concluded that the initial application of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group with regard to classification and measurement of
financial instruments and has no significant impact on the impairment
assessment of its financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. The estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives. It will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and therefore affect the
depreciation charges in future periods.

ii) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgment is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

iii) Principal versus agent consideration

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of general
trading products on a gross basis, that is, the Group
was considered as a principal, due to its significant
exposure to credit risk of customers. Upon application
of HKFRS 15, the Group is considered as an agent
for certain general trading products, the performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of such
products as the Group did not obtain the control over
the goods before passing on to customers taking
into consideration indicators such as the Group is not
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
such products in specified quality and not exposed to
inventory risk.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of intangible assets (other than goodwill)
The policy for impairment of intangible assets (other
than goodwill) of the Group is based on an evaluation
of their recoverable amount with reference to expected
future cash flows based on management’s estimation.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the expected future cash flows from the
Group’s pharmaceutical products under development
and software. If the recoverable amounts are less or
more than expected than the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets (other than goodwill), or changes in
facts and circumstances which may result in revisions of
the estimated future cash flows, impairment or reversal
of impairment loss may be required.

During the year, impairment loss on intangible
assets (other than goodwill) recognised in profit or
loss amounted to approximately RMB Nil (2017:
RMB3,121,000).

The carrying amount of intangible assets (other than
goodwill) as at 31 December 2018 was RMB28,507,000
(2017: RMB Nil) (see note 18).
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use; and (i) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

During the year, impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment and land use rights recognised in profit
or loss amounted to approximately RMB146,001,000
(2017: RMB683,326,000) and RMB1,197,000 (2017:
RMB27,558,000) respectively.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights as at 31 December 2018 were
RMB30,489,000 (2017: RMB191,263,000 (see note 16)
and RMB3,827,000 (2017: RMB7,714,000) (see note
17) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iif)

iv)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on aging of trade receivables as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 23.

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sales. The Group writes down slow-moving
or obsolete inventories based on an assessment of the
net realisable value of the inventories. Write-down of
inventories will be made where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is
less than cost. The determination of net realisable value
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the
inventories and the amount of inventory written down in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of inventories was RMB10,914,000 (2017:
RMB39,369,000) (see note 22).
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4,

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

vi)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2 (e) (ii). The recoverable amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit has been
determined based on its value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates. There
are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of cash flow projections for the period
covered by the approved budget and the estimated
terminal value. Key assumptions include the expected
operating margin, growth rates and selection of discount
rates, to reflect the risks involved and the earnings
multiple that can be realised for the estimated terminal
value. Management prepared the financial budgets
reflecting actual performance and market development
expectations. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect
these cash flow projections and therefore the result of
the impairment reviews.

Details of impairment change and key assumptions are
disclosed in note 19.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
goodwill was RMB Nil (2017: RMB Nil) (see note 19).

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. In assessing the amount of deferred income
tax assets that need to be recognised, the Group
considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the
Group’s estimates of projected future taxable income
and benefits from available tax strategies are changed,
adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred
income tax assets and income tax expense would be
made.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets was RMB Nil (2017: RMB 49,740,000) (see
note 30 (b)).
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

vii)

Withholding tax on the distributable profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement became
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

The Group has made provision for withholding tax on
dividends expected to be remitted from group entities
incorporated in the PRC based on the Group’s general
dividend policy for the net profits generated by the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries after 1 January 2008. The
Group provided withholding tax for such undistributed
profits as deferred tax liabilities. The directors of the
Company will regularly review the dividend distribution
policy of its subsidiaries from time to time.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax
on distributable profits was RMB5,031,000 (2017:
RMB9,894,000) (see note 30 (b)).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss ERMEE
— held-for-trading —REFE
Loans and receivables BEXRREYGGIE (BERS
(including cash and LIREFEY)

cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities ol =R
Amortised cost B EH AR

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to currency, interest rate, credit and liquidity risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising its equity investments in other
entities and movements in its own equity share price. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management polices
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

a) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the directors monitor its foreign exchange exposures
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. HBEEREERSMIAATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
a)  Currency risk (Continued) a) E¥ER(E&)
i) Exposure to currency risk i) B

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the THRANRBEARETE
end of the reporting period to currency risks arising from EAERBNEEE 2N
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency HEEBINEZEHER
other than the functional currency of the entity to which BESBBEEEZEKR
they relate. The currencies giving rise to these risks are %o EAZERBAESE T
primarily United States Dollars (‘USD”) and Hong Kong ZR%ET([ET)) RET
Dollars (‘HK$"). For presentation purposes, the amounts ([EBxl) REHmMS -
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the RREEAARKEZS I
spot rates at the year end date. LA R 25 HA SR MY B HA B i

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in RMB’000)
HNERR (MARMT THIE)

2018 2017
—2-N\% i
United United
States  Hong Kong States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
E BT Y BT
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRhBReEFEY - 308 7 55,922
Trade and other receivables B 5 UGB R
Hip el - 32,798 - 17,157
Trade and other payables EIRNTIER
A e 508 - (6,273) = (3,941)
Net exposure arising from ERRBEERAR
recognised assets EEMRKRFE
and liabilities - 26,833 7 69,138
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

6. HKEREEREMTIALNTE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
a)  Currency risk (Continued) a) E¥EK (&)
ii)  Sensitivity analysis i) BEEZHT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRINTRHREBHRARE
in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses (] TE B2 25 KRB MY 91N BEE B
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which ERZALREE (RK
the Group has significant exposure at the end of the i Efh Al 2R R RIFT
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all BIHAEBBRBMEEBA
other risk variables remained constant. In this respect, R EFEBEEENARE
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Bopttms - BRRATHE
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be ETHMNBBEERTER
materially unaffected by any changes in movement ETAEMER 2 EER
in value of the United States dollar against other ERAEESHEZEERY
currencies. &
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—+F

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after

in foreign tax and in foreign tax and

exchange  accumulated exchange accumulated

rates losses rates losses

HBRBEER HBpBeEE

HNEE B2t EE SN B 2 Rk 2tE#

Bm,/ Ofd) z58 #n/RD) pd- %

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBFT

HK$ BT 5% (267) 5% (3,457)

(5%) 267 (5%) 3,457
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table RSN ERIERZ
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects P B &S A S BT BE B
on each of the group entities’ profit or loss after tax and BOAENSEEEER
equity measured in the respective functional currencies, 1% ) S BT 18 M e R
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the EHRFTERTBRAA

end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primary from fixed-rate bank borrowings (note 29). The fixed-
rate bank borrowings expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks. However,
the management of the Group will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arises. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
below.

i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s bank borrowings at the end of the reporting

6. UKEMREEREMIALNTE

(%)

b)

I
*'Jtﬂ 2Ee R T AR FESR
RBEeREKEATHSMNEEH
i 35 B ) [ B o 7K &= [ e ) R
BREEREESRITER (E
29) B S RITIEREAREELR
AN ER R AKEE AR
ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ{£1—_[f/]'/_‘tm KSR T R R
meo AT EARE AEEER
EiERHERNE AR LY
Mo EREHAEENEMRR
EEHNTX

) RIEHE
TRARMEHAAEE
BOR1T A B A

period:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Range of Range of
Interest interest
rates rates
F 2= & E P =& E
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEE:
Secured bank loans BERRITER 4.57%- 233,792 4.57%- 281,942
6.31% 6.31%

i) Sensitivity analysis
All of the bank borrowings of the Group which are
fixed rate instruments are insensitive to any change in
interest rates. A change in interest rates at the end of the
reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

i) SEEAF
AEEEESTAZ A
PITIE BT F LR R
BORE  HNBERK 7
REHTEH AN
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

Credit risk

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk before
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and
loan receivables. In order to minimise the credit risks,
the management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from its debtors.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 76% are held
by a financial institution. The Group controls its credit risk on
bank balances through the regular review of their credit rating.
Given the high credit rating, management does not expect the
financial institution will fail to meet its obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each debtor. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had a concentration risk as 55% of the total trade and
other receivables was due from a customer.

For finance lease receivables, the Group has a concentration
of credit risk as 68% receivables were due from a party as at
31 December 2017. The party is a private company with no
history of default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk before
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 (Continued)

For loan receivables, the amount was due from an independent
third party as at 31 December 2017. The balance was fully
settled by 26 March 2018.

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties arises from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2018 on trade receivables from the Group’s top five
major debtors and the largest debtor amounting approximately
to 85% and 33% respectively of the Group’s total trade
receivables.

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk at
31 December 2018 on finance lease receivables from the
Group’s top three debtors and the largest debtor amounting
approximately to 100% and 51% respectively of the Group’s
total finance lease receivables.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorise exposures according to their degree of
risk of default. The finance team uses publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own historical repayment records
to rate its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded
is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
c) Credit risk (Continued) c)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 (Continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:

BRRBEEREMIAEATE

EERE (&)

R-F-NFE—F—AFNEE
B 75 3R & 2E B 93 12 A SE E
2 EEREEE (&)
AEE B 2 EERR D FER
BIELATHEA

Basis for BRE
recognising FEBE
Category Description ECL HRl HE HO 1k 5
Performing The counterparty has a low  12m ECL B4x ZSEFE 12@AEH
risk of default and does A RBER EEEIE
not have any past-due & B
amounts BEFRIA
Doubtful There has been a significant  Lifetime ECL TR FERRAY ZHESE
increase in credit risk - not credit- HHERE BEE—
since initial recognition impaired RBEZE LA AL
FERE
In default There is evidence indicating  Lifetime ECL BH ABARBRAE HEHSE
the asset is credit — credit EHBREER BEB-
impaired impaired DERIE] E4XEE
RE
Write-off There is evidence indicating ~ Amount is iy BAERBERAEGE MEAR
that the debtor is in written off % A AR Gk
severe financial difficulty BENPHE
and the Group has no #EAAEH
realistic prospect of R AT I
recovery BB AMRIE

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items by
using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit
loss experience based on the past default experience of the
debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
(including high risk, normal risk and low risk type).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after
adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, impairment loss of RMB972,000
was recognised for trade receivables in accordance with the
simplified approach, that is, lifetime ECL set out in HKFRS 9.
The directors of the Company considered that the ECL for
non-credit impaired trade receivables are insignificant as at 31
December 2018.

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
credit-rating agencies.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 6. HEEREEREMIAATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#8&)
(d) Liquidity risk (d FEBELER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEEANEREEEEEEES
for their own cash management, including the short term FReER (RIEREBHEH
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to BE)MBEERAEMAERE
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the SRR ERBRBBETEL
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain BECEEKTERAEGRAE
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to FgE - AEBZBERTDAE
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance HERERSHESERKREEE
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient RA BRI UBRES TR
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities REFBHRATARER 2 HEFE
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial FURKRETESRHEEZEN
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and AREeRR BEEEEAE
longer term. HRsEemKe
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRITAEERRERRES
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial MEBECHRTEHNIEHE
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted NEEMABESORUBER SR
cash flows of financial liabilities (including interest payments E(BEEAGHNANETEZF
computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the BAR) AEERR  WRAEH
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest AR ERN RN HH AR
and principal cash flows. K- ZRBENERASRENR
=
Carrying
Within More than More than amount at
1 year 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
oron less than less than undiscounted the reporting
demand 2 years 5 years cash flows period
150R 1)L 2F0E FITRRS REEHEK
FEEX B2 EHNR B5EMUR RELE HEREE
Non-derivative financial liabilities RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FiEenes ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
2018 “E-N\fF
Trade payables U] AN 1,159 - - 1,159 1,159
Other payables HiERFE 46,472 - - 46,472 46,192
Secured bank loans BEBRTER 247,330 - - 247,330 233,792
294,961 - - 294,961 281,143
2017 “ZtF
Trade payables B SMEME 4,101 - - 4,101 4,101
Other payables AR 8,696 - - 8,696 8,696
Secured bank loans BEBRTER 136,728 151,843 - 288,571 281,042
149,525 151,843 - 301,368 294,739
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for trading purpose classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index (the
“Index”). Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the Index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 10% (2017: 10%) in the relevant stock market
index (for listed investments) with all other variables held
constant would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated losses) and other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

BREBEEREMIAEAFE
(%)

e RERR
REBAAEDRRRATER
ABENEREEZFHFEEK
BIREEENREBEDER -

REER EHRERBERPT L
i IEIJ)\IEEE%I(HE%ZJ)
N-BARBHEERERNIES
H B 15 871 3% %Z%iﬁ(éﬁﬁa%ﬁz
REMITERRLEE)ARESE
BB EeTE MELEE
RTE °

R-ZE—-N\E+=-_A=+—8"
B H A B B35 N8 T4
Bl TIEER (B EhiREm s ) 1%
S Gl )10% (22— 4
10%) AEBEBRHREZEESR (&
ZEHEE) Rz A EMmARK
BABRD, BN

2018
ZE-N\E —E+f
Effect on Effect on
loss after Effect on loss after Effect on
tax and other tax and other
accumulated components accumulated components
losses of equity losses of equity
HRH% HER HRH% Higsn
BERZH AR BERZH Hivam
FEzg2 a2 4 BBEz72 Brew2
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Change in the relevant equity HERFERAREH 2 2E:
price risk variable:
Increase 0 10% 533 10% -
Decrease e 10% (533) 10% -
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change BRESNET BRERTEE
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and SEMARRREH 2 EHEN
other components of consolidated equity that would arise REMKREE TEERAREF
assuming that the changes in the stock market index or other AEASERFAECERIA
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting MizE T ESAREERRE R

period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

ARZBRAERRR HAEE
ZBHRER (RRFEE) kR
& HE R ) E A BB ) A% = 2Rk 2 A
R & TRRARERARE
Z R EAS AR b B A A e T 5 2K
XA A L e B B R R AR B R R
m&s) - BATE E B ERIFIS
E- RS TR_ZT—LFHA
HAEET
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Fair value measurement

i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the board of directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the board of
directors at least twice a year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

e MR

—NF+ZA=T—HALFE

BBEEE
(%)

ErEMIEATE

f) NHERE (F)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into
2018 R=E-NE+-A=t-A
R=B-N\% FEAUTERNATEHE
+ZA=+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZBYE E-BR EZER E=BR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurements BEHATEHE
Assets: BE
Financial assets at fair value BRTEHABEN
through profit or loss CHEE 6,387 6,387 - -
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into
2017 RZE-tF+-RA=+-H
RZZE—tF ARAATERNATEHE
+-A=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZRTE F—ER FZER FZER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET ARBTR ARET
Recurring fair value measurements LEMATEHE

Assets: gE:
Financial assets at fair value BATEHABRRL
through profit or loss SREE

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of RMB44,643,000 in relation
to an acquisition of Fujian Liumai Medical Services Co.,
Limited (“Fujian Liumai”) was estimated by applying the
income approach and based on the valuation performed by
an independent professional qualified valuer. The fair value
estimates were based on assumed profit of Fujian Liumai of
RMB8,000,000. This was a level 3 fair value measurement.
The key unobservable inputs of the valuation were: (i) expected
volatility of 53.7%; (ii) risk free rate of 3.21% and the estimated
profits of Fujian Liumai.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
The major unobservable input to the valuation was the
expected volatility. A slight increase in the expected volatility
used in isolation would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this arrange
was between RMB Nil and RMB44,643,000. The full amount
of RMB44,643,000 was settled by the Group with cash
consideration during the year 2017.

The movements during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair
value measurements are as follows:

At beginning of year F1]
Cash consideration paid ENEeRE
At end of year FR

g) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The directors of the Company consider the carrying amounts of
the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost were not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 respectively.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Board (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
three reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

il

a)

Pharmaceutical products: development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products, sales of
pharmaceutical related software and provision of consultancy
services;

Finance leasing: provision of finance leasing services; and

Other general trading: trading of goods other than
pharmaceutical products.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of financial assets at FVPL,
interests in an associate, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is
“adjusted earnings/(loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including
interest income from bank deposits and interest exposure
on bank and other borrowings and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses on
non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted earnings/(loss), the
Group’s earnings/(loss) are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
and auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted profit/(loss), the Board is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest income, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment losses, finance costs and additions
to non-current segment assets used by segments in their
operations.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (&)

a)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) ’“*ﬁﬁiz EEREE (H&)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the WO TR L ETHUR B 2 BT
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note %&‘EZL‘% BB AR -

2(x).
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BBEAEBEERSEZEHNE
provided to the Board for the purposes of resource allocation TN ZEERTIRETFES
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended EUDRERKTESBERERE
31 December 2018 and 2017 is set out below. ZE-NEFERZE—tF+=A
=+t—RIEFEZRE-
Pharmaceutical products Finance leasing Other general trading Total
BEER HEHE Ef-RER @it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E5-\F ZE-tF IE-\f ZT-+fF ZE-\F ZE-+fF ZE-\f ZT+f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Reportable segmentrevenue ~ RENHEF 2 2%
from external customers el 6,099 30,152 5,209 3,115 52,725 29,267 64,123 62,534
Reportable segment (loss) 2% (F8) /57
profit (adjusted EBITDA) “;ﬁg EBITDA) (24,287) (7,105) 3,701 1,885 (5,423) (828) (26,009) (6,048
Interest income from bank FAFFHIMA
deposits 107 265 - 1 3 - 10 266
Interest expense kS S (15,975) (12,695) - - - - (15,975) (12,69)
Depreciation and amortisation AN E R &
for the year (17,013) (81,887) - - - - (17,013) (81,837)
Written off of inventories FEHH (4,503) (4,544) - - (5,374) - (9877) (4,544
Impairment loss on: HTEEREEE:
- plant and equipment -HERRE (146,001)  (683,326) - - - - (146001)  (683,326)
- goodwil *ﬁ];‘ﬂ - (107,055) - - - - - (107,055)
- investment in an associate -R-EREATR - 4,799) - - - - - (4,795)
- amounts due from an assoclate  — WZ ABEAARE - (89915) - - - - - (89,915)
- other intangible assets -EfEVEE - (3,121) - - - - - (3,121)
- land use rights -1ifERE (1,197) (27,558) - - - - (1,197) (27,558
- other receivables -Efh RN (189,649) (2,540) - - - - (189,649) 2.540)
- trade receivables -BHRNE (979) - - - - = (979) =
Reportable segment assets SHNBEE 106,286 290,187 101,307 74,374 49,052 59,945 256,645 424 506
Additions to non-current ERERBLE
segment assets during EERE
the year 12,340 204,513 - - - - 12,340 204513
Reportable segment liabilites ~ 2FAEEE (265373)  (290,130) (6,785) (6,615) (1,142) (2416)  (273300)  (299,161)
Note: B 5 -
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external i 2Ry MW HIEINBELEEZK
customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year. o FNWES ARHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue from
external customers

Loss

Reportable segment loss derived
from Group’s external customers

Other income

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance costs

Impairment losses on non-current
assets

Impairment losses on trade
receivables

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Unallocated head office and
corporate other revenue
and net income

Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses
- staff cost (including director’s

emoluments
— written off of property, plant
and equipment

— others

Consolidated loss before taxation

IE
REINBES 2 28
e

5}
KEAKBEINEEP
ZERDEER
HlA
FrE R
BB RA
FERBEERERRE
25 R IBERERR
H b & U5 5RO R (BB 1R
AARBRERZ R AT
Hofth & Z SN A
3N
ANRERER R RAFRAX
—BIRAK
(BREEHE)
—ME - BB MR B

—Hft

A BRTATER

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

DHEEN (&

b) EHsEWE Em -BEREE

ZH R

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
64,123 62,534
(26,009) (6,048)
32,804 1,032
(17,021) (81,887)
(15,975) (12,695)
(147,198) (825,855)
(972) =
(189,649) (92,455)
205,516 771
(1,773) (2,784)
= (66)
(23,415) (14,869)
(183,692) (1,034,856)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets
Reportable segment assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Deferred tax assets
Unallocated head office and
corporate assets
— intangible assets
— deposit for acquisition of
non-current assets
— others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

ﬁ%
/'\*Eéﬁ
Eﬁiﬁﬁkﬁéz
ERMEE
BEERBEE
AAMBIREFR K
REIEE
—BVEE
—RBERBEE
ZHEE
—Hit

RAREE

&fE
2HRHMAR
BEERBRE
AAMBIRER K
RAEBE

meRAaE

c) Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

major products and services.

Sales of pharmaceutical products

Sales of pharmaceutical related
software

Sales of other goods for general
trading

Sales of fitness equipment

Sales of electric appliances

Sales of other software

Provision of consultancy services

Finance leasing income

Total

HEBEER
5 65 B8 ZE AR R B

HEEM—RESEMR

HER SN
HEEFe
3 A
HE A ] AR 7%
MEHEEKA
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DHEEN (&

~

b) Eﬁ“%Wﬁ B BENKERE

2R (4
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
256,645 424,506
6,387 =
= 49,740
28,507 =
46,760 =
27,431 56,806
102,698 56,806
365,730 531,052
(273,300) (299,161)
(5,031) (9,894)
(15,872) 2,772)
(294,203) (311,827)
c) REFEEMERKE WG
uTﬁ$§@IQIRFm&%
YA C v
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
6,099 26,188
= 1,026
34,858 29,267
3,565 -
13,727 =
575 =
- 2,938
5,299 3,115
64,123 62,534




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (&)
d)  Geographic Information d HEEHER
(i)  Revenue from external customers () KEHNBEFZ W m

The following sets out information about the TEREHNEEREERE

geographical location of the Group’s revenue from SNERE P 2 W g B P AE 3

external customers, based on the location at which the @2 R o B P E iR

services were provided or the goods delivered. HRB R E R EN R E
S o

Revenues from external customers

MBEFEEZWE
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREEF T
Hong Kong BB 16,399 25,178
PRC (place of domicile) FE (FriEi) 47,724 37,356
64,123 62,534
(i) Non-current assets (i) HAEBEE
No non-current assets information is presented for the AEEIEZHBERIER
Group’s geographical location, as over 90% of the BEEMNMEER  BASK
Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax B BO0% K FE M BN & B
assets) are located on the PRC. (TEBEEERBEE) M
A E o
e) Information about major customers e) EBHEFEEFZER
Revenue of approximately RMB16,400,000 (2017: #“ NER#¥16,400,000T (=&
RMB22,900,000) are derived from a single external customer —+F: AR¥22,900,0007T) 2
attributable to “other general trading” segment. WaDEEEB [HM—H%E

IR —RE—IHEHEP-

8. REVENUE 8. W&
The principal activities of the Group are the development, AEBNEEXEBAEFEERME &)
manufacturing, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products, BEMBHEEREES UARBEBLENA
sales of pharmaceutical related software, provision of consultancy A REEERE EM—RES
services, other general trading and provision of finance leasing RIRHRERS RS-
services.

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS ik 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE (Continued)

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during

Wz (8

~

FABRAZZEENER 2 Bz 2B M

the year are as follows: Dk
Disaggregation of revenue i 25 4 55
Pharmaceutical products Finance leasing Other general trading Total
BEER RERE Hit-RES b
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\F ZE—+fF ZE-N\F ZE+f ZE-NF ZF-+f -F-NF ZT-t%
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Types of goods and services EmREHER
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ RE BB B & & E8 F1558ER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HREEFANZKE
Sales of goods HEER
— Pharmaceutical products ~BEER 6,009 26,188 - = - = 6,099 26,188
~ Pharmaceutical related software -BEREas - 1,026 - - - - - 1,026
- Other goods for general trading -Et-REZER - - - - 34,858 29,267 34,858 29,267
- Fitness equipment -BHR - - - = 3,565 = 3,565 =
~ Electric appliances -B% - - - - 18,727 - 13,727 =
- Other software —HipEH - - - - 575 - 575 -
Provision of consultancy services REBMRE - 2,938 - - - - - 2938
Revenue from other sources REHMRE 2 W
Finance lease interest income BEREHEHRA - = 5,299 3115 - = 5,299 3,115
6,099 30,152 5,299 3,115 52,725 29,267 64,123 62,534
Timing of revenue recognition W RERE R
A point in time R-hRE% 6,099 26,188 - - 52,725 29,267 58,824 55,455
Over time R - 3,964 5,209 3,115 - - 5,299 7,079
6,099 30,152 5,299 3,115 52,725 29,267 64,123 62,534
Note: B 5 -
i) The Group has initally applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. i) AEBERRNHELNTEATEY

Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was
prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 (See note 3).

ii) For sales of pharmaceutical products and products other than pharmaceutical
products, revenue is recognised when control of goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been accepted by customers (acceptance) after
goods delivered to the specific location or picked up by customers. Following
acceptance, the customers have full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, have the primary responsibility when on selling the
goods and bear the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is 30 to 180 days upon acceptance.
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BIRERERAIFE165 - RIFZ T A LLBE
BRTEY MREEB G EAE18
ST IARE (RHES) -

REHEERRERAINERDN T K
SN SRR (ARRRER
NEREBERTSWRRERSZR)

R REMER TP 2ENBERED
KA RHERRMNER YRHER
mEFEEIRRERAERRNEER
BEERR  —REEHSEMARER Z30H
Z£180H °



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income
Loan interest income
Bond interest income

Total interest income on financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment upon
mandatory auctions

Exchange gain, net

Sundry income

Dividend income

Commission income

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

9. HfttkzH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AREFT
|ITFE A 110 266
BB A 765 771
EHF B WA 286 =
W IR AFEFABREZ
SRMEEMT B AREE 1,161 1,037
REHINERLEDE W5
MEBZ R
32,458 =
& H s 55 6,503 =
HMIEA 1,714 20
AR B A 9 _
Al A 1,568 =
43,413 1,057
10. BRBATEE

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

a) Finance costs

Interest on bank borrowings
Other interest expense

Total interest expenses on
financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss

b) Staff costs

Directors’ emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
— Share-based payments
— Salaries, wages and other
benefits

Total staff costs *#

BRIBRIEIEEINR, (GTA)ATE
18 :

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETF T
a) AERA
IRITEERE 15,915 12,695
HEmF 8 60 =
W IR A FEFAEEZ
SRBENT SR8
15,975 12,695
b) EIMA
E=EM (M) 855 1,179
Hith 8 T A
— TE SR TR IR A B R
1,000 1,544
— AR BERE 2K 10,481 e
—%¢ IAREMER
10,464 14,299
B TR 22,800 17,022

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

c) Other items c) HttiEE
Depreciation of property, plant Y BB RERETE
and equipment *# (note 16) (FF3E16)
Amortisation of intangible mEERE
assets (note 18) (KI5E18)
Amortisation of land use rights I Hb {5 AR 8
(note 17) (FF3E17)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT B &
Exchange loss/(gain), net BB (M) FE
Fair value loss on financial assets FFABZZEREEN
through profit or loss N EEE
Operating lease payments in respect REEMEZN
of rented premises LERHNR
Cost of inventories* (note 22) FERA (K5E22)
Research and development costs* Tt 8% Bk A
Loss on disposal of financial asset at HERAFEFABEZ
fair value through profit or loss SRIEEMNEIE
L Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB9,523,000 (2017:

RMB80,263,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Research and development costs includes approximately RMB160,000
relating to depreciation (2017: approximately RMB2,098,000 relating to staff
costs and depreciation) which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.
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10. BRBATEE (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
14,765 80,225
- 797
2,256 865
1,652 1,427
(6,503) 3,016
1,790 =
1,399 1,159
54,558 114,432
1,160 2,199
1,677 2,111

* GERABERETIRARFTESBN
# AR #9,523,0007 (ZF—LF: A
R %80,263,0007T) * 2 & FEIMEIER £
NEBHRENSEERLESE-

* B R A B IEE BT E 4 AR #160,000
T (ZZE—LF: 4 AR#2,098,0007T
BEEBTIRARINE)  Z2BENEER
FXEBEENSEBRASE-



11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are

as follows:

Executive directors

Chen Chengging (note a)
(Chairman)

Hung Hoi Lan (note b)

Zhang Rongaing (note ¢)

Lin Ouwen (note d)

Lin Min (note €)

Non-executive directors
Xiu Yuan (note f)

Independent

non-executive directors
Zhang Jie (note g)
Zhang Xue Wen (note g)
Wu Cheng Han (note g)
Wang Zihao (note h)
Tu Fangkui (note h)
Zhang Rongaing (note ¢)
Long Jun (note i)
Chan Chun Yin, Victor (note j)

HEs
BRAkEE (Miia)
(X&)
HBR (Mb)
RERE (M)
HREX (MiEEd)
e (Hize)

*UTES
iz (i)

BYFHTES

s AGED))

REX (Mig)
Rk (Mig)
E75 (M)
E7® (Mih)
REE (Mic)
BE (M)

B (M)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZ—F— \F+_A=+—HIFE

1. ESHMH
RIEEE R BHRHIE383(MIRE AT (F
FNRESRE)ERE-_BOREZ
EERFBEIINT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EtF
Contributions Contributions
to defined to defined
Salaries,  contribution Salaries, contribution
allowances retirement allowances retirement
and other plans  Share-based and other plans
Directors’ benefits EEHAK payment benefits EREMR
fees He EHR B HURGRER Total Fees H22ER BRI Total
24 Hitfz R B PACES et ne bR SRR 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARETz ARETR ARETR ARET:
203 - - 128 331 173 - - 173
203 - - 917 1,120 173 - - 173
102 - - 967 1,069 26 - - 26
- - - - - 422 - - 422
- - - - - 34 S S 34
16 - - - 16 - - S S
- - - - - 56 - - 56
- - - - - 56 - - 56
- - - - - 56 S S 56
102 - - 123 225 61 - - 61
102 - - - 102 61 - - 61
- - - - - 35 S S 35
102 - - 114 216 2 - - 2
25 - - - 25 - - S =
855 - - 2,249 3,104 1,179 - - 1,179

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

a)

Mr. Chen Chengaging was appointed as executive director and chairman on
17 February 2017 and 16 June 2017 respectively.

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan was appointed as executive director on 17 February 2017.

Mr. Zhang Rongging was appointed as non-executive director on 16 June
2017, re-designated from independent non-executive director to an executive
director on 15 September 2017.

Mr. Lin Ouwen was retired as executive director on 16 June 2017.

Mr Lin Min resigned as executive director on 17 February 2017.

Mr. Xiu Yuan was appointed as non-executive director on 5 November 2018.

Mr. Zhang Jie, Mr. Zhang Xue Wen and Mr. Wu Cheng Han were retired as
independent non-executive director on 16 June 2017.

Mr. Wang Zihao and Mr. Tu Fangkui were appointed as independent non-
executive director on 16 June 2017.

Mr. Long Jun was appointed as independent non-executive director on 15
September 2017.

Mr. Chan Chun Yin, Victor was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 5 October 2018.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018

11.

EE=HM (&)

B e

a) REKBEEDBIR-_T—+tF_A++
BR=—ZF—tFAATAABEZERHA
TEERERE-

b) HEWZIR —E—tF-_A+LAE
RERRTES-

c) REBEER-_FT—LF A+ A%
ZERFNTEF IR -_FT—LFN
A+ ARBBIIFNTESRERNT
B

d) MEXEER—T—LFATRBR
ERITES-

e) MBEER_F—EF-A+LHRE
WITES-

f) BERAER-_ZF-N\F+—-ARLAEZ
ERIFRNITES-

) RELEE RBEXAEERIKBEER
TE—EFRATRAREBILIFRT
o

h) ITFREERBIBEER_FT—tF
NATABEZERBIUFNITES

i) BEAER-_Z—tHFNATHHER
ERBIFFRITES-

) RIFAEER_FB-N\F+AREES
ERBILFRITES

RER AEERERERNEETINE
e EREMARERRAEER A
REERSHRENBERAEE - RBE
- N\FR_F—tF+-_RA=+—H
LHEE SEEEREEAME-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, included two
director (2017: one director) of the Company whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 11. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the remaining three (2017: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMHE
Share-based payment LARR 0 B EHE 2 PR

Contributions to defined contribution TE BB SR IRET Bl 3K

retirement plans

The emoluments of the three (2017: four) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

Emoluments band HesE
Nil - HK$1,000,000 (approximately £ %1,000,000% T
equivalent to RMB846,000 (HER AR #846,0007T

(2017: RMB865,000))
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

(approximately equivalent to

RMB1,270,000

(2017: RMB1,297,000))

(ZZ—+F: AR¥865,0007T) )
1,000,0017% 7L 21,500,000/ 7T

(HE M AR#1,270,0007C

(ZZ—+F: AR#1,297,0007T) )

No emoluments was paid by the Group to the above individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as for loss of
office during the year. None of the above individuals has waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

12.

S#FAL

I
Tt

hEERHFALH BEMNEBEARAE
B(ZE2—tHF:—2EF) KEZH
ERERHEN -BRT=2(ZF—t
FOB)ALHBESERENT

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
1,157 2,696

69 =

30 74

1,256 2,670

=2 (ZE—tF EIR)RBHFALZ
B2 oI

Number of individuals

A8
2018 2017
—2-0F “E-tf
2 4
1 =
3 4

RER REEBESNERHES T L
AL EREMAREBERAEE A
AEBERHREXBEREE - RBE
= N\Ep=FtFr= A=1+—H
IEFE - Bt AT EERME -

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

13.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

a)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

Current tax EHBiE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENGH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") HE MG

([REmE MJ)

Deferred taxation (note 30(b)(i)) EIEF A (M EE30(0)())

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, one of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, Fujian Liumai
Medical Services Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Liumai”) is exempted from
PRC EIT for two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017,
followed by a 50% reduction for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the next two years ending 31 December 2019 to 31
December 2020.

For other PRC subsidiaries of the Group, PRC EIT is calculated
at 25% (2017: 25%) in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated
at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year, taking into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax payable for the year
of assessment 2017-18 subject to a maximum reduction of
HKD30,000 for each business (2017: a maximum reduction of
HKD20,000 was grated for the year assessment 2016-17 and
was taken into account in calculating the provision for 2017).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.
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13.

REBERAZMEHR

a) RIEZABRZAEH

RAEBERANZRIEE:
2018 2017
—N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETFT
267 159
918 575
44,878 116,154
46,063 116,888

BIEPBARR AR REE A%
EMET—EPBENEAR &
EAKEERBEARAA([1E
BRI FEHE-ZT—RF
kZZT—+F+=ZA=+—H1t
MEFEFRCEMEHRE2ER
HE-_ZT-N\FE+-_A=+—8
IHEE BEZ-_Z—NE+=A
=t+—BE-_ZT-_TH+ A
=+ —BIEREREFEEPED
EMEHREHEnTEER-

RAEBEMAEMBAR
5 PEAEMERILRETE
HEARERIK2D% (—ZF—+
F:25% ) R E -

ZE-N\FEBFNEREE
TOAR IR 6 1 51 FE R B0k 3%
1&@H:§—t¢wamwm

1 AT E @ﬁ&?%%%ﬁﬁ
&ﬁfﬁ T—t—— \FFER
EE%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm RZ275%
18 25 5B L R A30,000%8 7T
(ZB—+tF RNt E_E—+F
BEBRET R ———+1tF
R B FE 45 T20,00078 T2 B IR
EBR)

REBEFASESRA AR K&
EHBAXNEMNRSEHSNE
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 13. HZEBBERAZFER (8)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss b) BREAREGFENHEREYHES
at applicable tax rates: SHEIBE RN T
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T
Loss before tax BREi AT E R (183,692) (1,034,856)
Notional tax on loss before tax, RAEABERMEA R =X
calculated at the rates applicable TERTIAIEE
in the countries concerned WEEHIE (28,444) (254,792
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1~ A] 318 & B H i 15 52 & 79,772 39,381
Tax effect of non-taxable income FRERRABM S 2 MG E (59,980) (14,188)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised ~ RIERFIAR B 2 M5 £ 9,855 53,275
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER AR R ZETE
differences not recognised ZBBEE S 177,721
Reversal of deferred tax assets BB ARIFERR L
recognised in prior years R IHE B
(note 30(b)(i) ( B 5E30(0)(i) ) 49,740 119,000
Tax effect of income tax at BREBRRE2HIE
concessionary rate - (637)
Statuary tax concession EEZBIBER 17) (26)
Effect of withholding tax on the $'§ = B E A
distributable profits of the Group’s Dk A 2 FEH %R ?ﬁ z
PRC subsidiaries (note 30(b)(i)) (B 5E30(b)() ) (4,863) (2,846)
Actual tax expense ERBIERX 46,063 116,888
14. DIVIDENDS 14. KRE

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for both years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

j%%kuﬁxﬁ'f@i—? —NFR
—tFE+ - A=t+—HALREFE
/)EHXHHH“Q"
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15.

LOSS PER SHARE

a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB229,755,000 (2017: RMB1,151,744,000) and the
weighted average number of 2,980,305,788 ordinary shares
(2017: 2,408,020,719 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

RRRGEE ANEIGER

Loss attributable to owners of

the Company (basic) (EX)
Weighted average number of T AR IR S 8
ordinary shares (basic) (EX)

Mt HEBREREEZ
BN 1 B

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented as
the impact of the share options had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amount presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted loss per share
was the same as the basic loss per share as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding.

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB229,755,000
(2017: RMB1,151,744,000) and the weighted average number
of 2,980,305,788 (2017: 2,408,020,719) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.
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a) BREXERE

BREABBIREEFAARRD
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2018 2017
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2018 2017
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(b) BREHERF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ -BERRZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment
improvements RE- Motor Plant and
Buildings HE EE#E vehicles  machinery Total
BF MERE R#&E ABE BERKES @zt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFRT AREFr AR®Tr ARETr ARETR
Cost B
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+&—A—A 209,526 269 44,157 5,446 1,326,818 1,586,216
Additions HNE S S ) S 204,508 204,513
Derecognised on disposal of a MEHALE
subsidiary (note 37) — B2 A (M FE37) - - (46) - (1) (53)
Written off sy = (269) = = = (269)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—LF
and 1 January 2018 +=ZA=+-Bk
—T-\§—R—H 209,526 - 44,116 5,446 1,531,319 1,790,407
Derecognised on disposal of BEBERLE—H
a subsidiary (note 37) WEB AR (M3a7) = = (728) 4,311) (180,807) (185,846)
Disposal e (30,746) = = (188) - (30,934)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-A=+—-H 178,780 - 43,388 947 1,350,512 1,573,627
Accumulated depreciation R ERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2017 R=-F—t§—A—A 99,817 203 41,378 4,939 689,506 835,843
Charge for the year FRAX 3,889 - 399 167 75,770 80,225
Impairment loss recognised in REH T ERNRE
profit or loss (note (c)) 18 (M) 82,698 = 1,849 = 598,779 683,326
Eliminated on disposals of a HE—RMBAREEA
subsidiary (note 37) (Fiks7) - = (@1 = 6) (47)
Written off Hiss - (203) - - - (203)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—LF
and 1 January 2018 t=ZA=+—-Bk
—Z-\§—H—H 186,404 - 43,585 5,106 1,364,049 1,599,144
Charge for the year FRHEX 613 - 55 17 13,980 14,765
Impairment loss recognised in REBH T ERNRE
profit or loss (note (c)) B8 (M) 785 = 467 173 144,576 146,001
Eliminated on disposal of a & — R B A A8
subsidiary (note 37) 3K (M EE37) - = (728) (4,311) (180,807) (185,846)
Eliminated on disposal HE R (30,746) - - (180) = (30,926)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
=== 157,056 = 43,379 905 1,341,798 1,543,138
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
S =—H 21,724 - 9 42 8,714 30,489
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+&
T= A S 23,122 - 531 340 167,270 191,263

—EREEXEEARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

a)

As at 31 December 2018, the approval for applications of house ownership
certificates for buildings of the Group with a total carrying amount of
RMB21,724,000 (2017: RMB23,122,000) were still in progress.

At 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment with a net book value
of approximately RMB27,431,000 (2017: RMB28,547,000) was pledged
to banks as collateral against the bank loans of RMB233,792,000 (2017:
RMB281,942,000) (note 29).

Impairment loss
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Based on the annual impairment test performed, an impairment loss of
RMB146,001,000 and RMB1,197,000 has been recognised in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights (note 17), respectively. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit determined based on value in use
calculation is estimated to be RMB Nil.

Assumptions used in the value in use calculation are determined with
reference to the cash flow projections prepared and approved by the
management based on past performance and management’s expectation for
the market development and evaluation of the future business prospect.

The impairment loss arose as a result of the following factors: (i) the
substantial change in the management team of Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Fujian Sanai”’) and Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Fuzhou Sanai”) in 2018 which could not be properly
handled the operations in a timely manner; and resulted in the sales of
Fujian Sanai and Fuzhou Sanai fell short of expectation; (i) the fast-changing
developing pace within the industry; and (i) management evaluation of the
future business prospect of Fujian Sanai and Fuzhou Sanai.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has experienced
a significant drop in revenue due to (i) the loss of customers resulted
from suspension of the operations from late 2016 to early 2017 of all the
production compartments in the Group’s production plant located in the
Haixi Plant Development Zone in Jianyang City, Fujian Province, PRC (the
“Haixi Plant”) in late 2016; (i) the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” and
“Drug Concentration Procurement”; (iii) failure of one of the major products
of the Group to be listed in the National Medical Insurance Directory; (iv) few
months’ suspension period of oral products production in 2017 due to GMP.
Certification; and (v) rectification on certain production units in October 2017.

The management of the Group therefore performed an impairment review of
the recoverable amount related to Haixi Plant. For the purposes of impairment
testing of the Haixi Plant, property, plant and equipment and land use rights
located at the Haixi Plant was allocated to one cash generating unit (‘CGU”)
of sales of pharmaceutical products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

°)

Impairment loss (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined based on management
estimation of fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU and with reference
to the valuation performed by an independent professional valuer, using the
discounted cash flow forecast and with reference to the recent growth rate in
the pharmaceutical industry.

The major assumptions used included discount rate of 9% and the projected
sales volume for the CGU which has taken into account the existing directors’
consideration that the future performance of the CGU will be consistent with
the CGU’s past and management’s expectation for the market development.
The fair value on which the recoverable amount is based is categorised as a
Level 3 measurement.

The key assumptions used on the calculations are on follows:

Market growth rate 8%
Long-term growth rate 3%
Cost of disposal 14.4%

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment with net carrying
amount of RMB Nil were auctioned. Detail of auctions are disclosed in note

283.

e MR

- N\EFTRA=T—HLFE

16. ¥ -BERFRE (&)

BaE: ()

0)

HERR (&)

REEEBUMNTTKESEERERE
R FERREEEEMHERA R
RSEBUZXEHEMFAURRRALR
BRARBETEAMERRBETZ
fh{E-

AT ERIACEUREINIREEE
BUEAHEE (B RBRAESH I
SREEEBULRRRRBERSE
SENZBERA-BNEERERE
HMIGRRZEH) -IKESBATE
RERE=HHMEtE-

RN EBARERDT

M5 R % 8%
REBERS 3%
B 14.4%

FR-EBETHREFEARARBTTZY
¥ BERREEHE -FRAEZFE
M 23R R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. LAND USE RIGHTS 17. T {E AR
RMB’000
AREF T
Cost 29
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RZT—+F—A—H ZT—tF

1 January 2018 +-—A=+—BRER-_ZE—N\&—HA—H 64,030
Disposal & (5,832)
At 31 December 2018 RZFE—NFE+=ZA=+—H 58,198

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2t EEREE
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—+tF—HA—H 27,893
Amortisation for the year FREEH 865
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RiBm AR KR EEE (HiE16(c))

(note 16(c)) 27,558

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZB—tF+ZA=+—8BK

—F-\F—A—H 56,316
Amortisation for the year FNEE 2,256
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RiEm A ERAREEE (MiF16(c))

(note 16(c)) 1,197
Eliminated on disposal HE R Y (5,398)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—H 54,371

Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NFE+=ZA=+—H 3,827
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H 7,714

i) As at 31 December 2018, land use rights with a net book value
of approximately RMB3,827,000 (2017: RMB6,040,000) was
pledged to banks as part of the collateral against bank loans of
RMB233,792,000 (2017: RMB281,942,000) (note 29).

ii) During the year, certain land use rights with net carrying
amount of approximately RMB434,000 were auctioned. Details
of auctions are disclosed in note 23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BEEE
Other
intangible
Product Software asset
development (note a) (note (b))
Patents costs uf HuEpEE Total
R ERERARK (GEEY (FiEE®b)) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2017, RZE-t5-A-8"
31 December 2017 and “E—+F
1 January 2018 +=A=+t-Ak
—Z-\§-A-H 16,230 7,850 3,984 - 28,064
Additions NE = = - 28,507 28,507
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1-H 16,230 7,850 3984 28,507 56,571
Accumulated amortisation and ZHBHRAE
impairment
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t%-A-H 16,230 7,850 66 - 24,146
Charge for the year FRRAZ - - 797 - 797
Impairment loss recognised RMERPERNRERE
in profit or loss - - 3,121 - 3,121
At 31 December 2017, RZZ—tF
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 +-A=1+-H
—Z-N\¥-A-H
RZE-N\F
+-A=+—-H 16,230 7,850 3,984 - 28,064
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+ZA=1+-AH - - - 28,507 28,507
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t&+-A=1+-H - = S = =
Note: B 5
(@) Intangible assets have finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis (@) BEEERBAEAFHCEBFEENER

over its estimated useful life of five years, except for certain of the intangible
assets which are not yet available for use.

(b) During the year, the Group acquired an intangible asset from an independent
third party (the “Vendor”), which related to a right to the economic returns
on certain laundry shops in the PRC, at a consideration of RMB28,507,000.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the useful lives of this
intangible asset is indefinite pursuant to the terms stipulated in the acquisition
agreement.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BORREMGHAIERFARAF NS
- R TR BAME TRVEERI -

(b) FR A K EIAKE AR %28,507,000
TEBYE=([EHKEBELE
B T3 R R BE T YRR IE 2 A8
EERER c ARREERR RKIE R
FREZGR ZBVEELAERF

REEZHHE R AR RE R E
fzmEKER [TTRER] -

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

19. GOODWILL

Cost [B%N

At 1 January and 31 December

Accumulated impairment losses ZiH R EEE
At 1 January Rn—A—H

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss A 8 25 A #E 32 #Y 6l B &5 18

At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to a CGU as follows:

B B HEARR M R

Sales of pharmaceutical related

R—A—BAER+=ZA=+—H

RHBERRS

software and provision of
consultancy service

Based on the annual impairment test performed, an impairment loss
of RMB107,055,000 has been recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
determined based on value-in-use calculation is estimated to be RMB
Nil.

Assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation are determined
with reference to the cash flow projections prepared and approved
by the management based on past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development and evaluation of the future
business prospect.

The impairment loss arose as a result of the following factors: (i)
the substantial change in the management team of Fujian Liumai
in 2017 which could not be properly handled the operations in a
timely manner, and resulted in the sales of Fujian Liumai fell far short
of expectation; (i) the fast-changing development pace within the
industry; and (iii) management’s evaluation of the future business
prospect of Fujian Liumai.

132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2017 which principally affected the result, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Particulars of

20.

RENBLA

UTEEEHI _T—+F+=A
=t BRYEAREZXE BEXAE
BERPEZIZMBRRZFE K
FEREHRH BAMBROENRER

B

Proportion of ownership interest

issued and FEEEDL
paid up capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of registered capital effective the a
incorporation BETK interest Company subsidiary
Name of subsidiary and business HRRER/ KEE ADH K @27 Principal activity
WEAEEHE EMALREE B AMERFFE BifER 5B B8 ITEE
Sanai International Investment Company  British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ 10,000 ordinary 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong shares of US$1 each
“Wuyi International Pharmaceutical
Investment Company Limited”
("Sanai BVI")
ERBRAERAR (A RERIES 10,000 & B AR & REER
[RREREXREERAA]) (IEBRRES]) /B 1ETHEBR
(T=%8Bv1])
Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Hong Kong 300,000,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Company Limited ordinary share
BREREZ (FR)ERAF EE 300,000,000 & & % RERR
Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Company ~ PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% S 100% Develop, manufacture,
Limited (“Fujian Sanai”) (note (ii)) enterprise for a term of RMB290,780,000 marketing and sales
50 years commencing of pharmaceutical
18 January 2000 products
BR-FEZARAA hENEBERE ERE-EN R 2 2R
(MEg=%]) (M) AR #290,780,0007C EBEER
Fujian Liumai (note (ii)) PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% - 100% Sales of pharmaceutical
enterprise for a term of RMB10,000,000 related software
30 years commencing and provision
21 August 2014 of consultancy
services
BREK (M) hEAEEELE EMEX HEBEHBATRE
“Z-mMENAZt—H AR¥10,000,0007T BRI AR
&t R HEI30F
Sanai International Trading Company Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary 100% — 100% General trading
Limited (formerly known as shares
China Green Energy Interactive
Development Limited)
ZERRESARDA £ 10,000,000 & 3 —RE5
(A8 [hEFEEREDER
BRAR])

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

20. REMBLT (&)

Proportion of ownership interest
AL

issued and
paid up capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of reglstered capital effective the a
incorporation EBTR interest Company subsidiary
Name of subsidiary and business HRRE,/ r&EE Y| HE2E Principal activity
WELRERE EMALREEHE EMERFEE BRER 5B HE IEER
Union Development Financial Leasing PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% S 100%  Provision of finance
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (note (if)) enterprise for a term of RMB120,000,000 leasing services
30 years commencing
5 December 2016
BAERBEHE (RINBER FECMEEALR FHER REBEEERY
(B3 -~F+=ARA AR 120,000,000
5 Bi0E
Zhejiang Sanai Biotechnology Limited PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% S 100% General trading
(note (i) enterprise for a term of HK$30,000,000
10 years commencing
8 September 2017
WI=F EWRBAERRR (M) hE-NEBELE #HER —RE5
—Z—+EAANE 30,000,000 7T
R REHTE
Fujian Sanai Biotechnology PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% S 100% General trading
Limited (note (if) enterprise for a term of 10 HKD10,000,000
years commencing
24 October 2017
BEZELYRRERDA FECMEEALR #HER —RE5
(P3E() —E—t#+A=1+MmA 10,000,000 7T
R REHTE
Shenzhen Sanai Industry Company Limited PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100% S 100% General trading
(note (ii) enterprise for a term HKD10,000,000
of infinitely sustainable
commencing 21 June 2018
RIN=BEEARAT (F) hE-NEBEELE #HER —RE5
ZE-\FRAZT-A 10,000,000% 7T
RKELE
Forever Trump Development Holdings BVI 50,000 ordinary shares 100% S 100%  Investment holding
Limited (‘Forever Trump) of US$1 each
EBERERERARN ([EEER]) RBRIES 50,000 RERAME REER
1ETHERR
Forever Turmp Energy Technology Limited  Hong Kong 1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(“Forever Trump Energy”) ordinary shares
BBERMRARAR ([BBER]) B8 1,000,000% &k REER
Shanghai Shangliu Company Limited PRC wholly-owned enterprise Registered capital 100% = 100% Investment in laundry
(note (i) for a term of 30 years RMBS5,000,000 business
commencing 5 June 2018
HE2ERE BCE-NF FHER RERKES
NARRRAH=TE AR 15,000,0007C
Notes: B &
i) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the i) A R 25 B SR 5K 4R 0 fo] B D - 4B 4 BB
reporting period, or at any time during the year. NEAEAIREENELES
ii) The English names of the subsidiaries are presented for identification ii) MR R 2 X BB E AR -
purposes only.
i} During the year, the Group acquired Forever Trump and its subsidiaries, i) FRAEEREEHERREMNB R

namely Forever Trump Energy and /&4t (together “Forever Trump Group”)
at a consideration of RMB329,500. Forever Trump Group was dormant at the
time of acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
associates, which are unlisted companies whose quoted market price
is not available:

21.

ARE MR
~NFt+ZAZ+-BLEE
REEE DB R

TREFNHORIE LT AR BLETE
ZAEEBERNR ZER:

Proportion of ownership interest

FE#EEAL
Particulars of
Place of issued and Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation paid up capital effective the a
and business BETR interest Company subsidiary
Name of company FEMARLR HMERE/ AEE NS HEAR  Principal activity
Wi 2 A A TEE HEMERFE BifEs 55 #E IEER
Antu County Guanghui Chinese Medicine PRC RMB10,000,000 - - - Not yet commence
Technology Development Company Limited Registered (2017: 49%) (2017: ) (2017: 49%) business
(*Antu Guanghui”)
REGEBEPEMHRBERERAA FEl BHIARK (Z2—+t%F: (ZF—+F:-) (Z2—+t%F:  HARBEH
(IZBEEE]) 10,000,000 49%) 49% )
Wenshou Sanyin Company Limited PRC RMB20,000,000 49% - 49%  Not yet commence
BN=BREFERAT Registered (2017: ) (2017: 5 (2017: ) business
HE BHEMARYE (Z2—+F:-) (Z2—+%F:-) (Z2—+t%:-) HAHREH
20,000,0007T
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability company. * BEFEEEEIMAEREEAA
# The English name is presented for identification purpose only. g EXLBEEHA

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited* (“Fuzhou Sanai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
invested an aggregate amount of approximately RMB94,815,000
in the associate which engaged in the plantation of the Chinese
herb, Perilla. In 2017, as Fuzhou Sanai was informed that Perilla Oil
Capsule was not included in the National Reimbursement Drug List,
the sales volume of Perilla Oil Capsule had an obvious drop and the
demand for perilla seeds by the Group had a substantial decrease.
To minimise losses, Fuzhou Sanai issued a letter to the associate to
request the termination of the cooperative plantation agreement and
the refund of investment amount. Such request had not received
a positive response. After lengthy negotiation, the management
of Fuzhou Sanai determined to take legal actions to protect its
rights, and initiated legal proceedings against Antu Guanghui. The
management of the Group determined to make a full impairment of
RMB4,795,000 on the investment amount in the associate at the end
of the year so as to reflect the potential risk of loss.

In 2018, the Company disposed of Fuzhou Sanai (note 37). Upon the
completion of disposal, the Company has no significant influence on
Antu Guanghui.

During the vyear, J& 1 =% was set up and the Group shall pay up
RMB9,800,000 of capital. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
has not yet paid up the capital, while )&/ =2 did not commence
business in 2018.

3 English name is presented for identification purpose only.

—EREEXEEARAT

VA BB 2 B P pe R
RAANERe

SNV UP LD

RZEBE—XNE+-_A=+—H0 K&
BE2EMBRARIBMN=-BHERRA
A(EBN=ZBEREAXHDARE
94,815,0007T £ #t = B & AN fE ¥ 5 &
EEMNBERR -R_E—tF AR
%Ed‘l‘lEﬂ%%ﬁ%iﬁaiﬂiﬁ%ﬂiw_)\%
BRES AL&HTHBBEHEES
BETHMAREEREHET 2 FRKIF
MJEBZ’J\G) BABL BINZB K
R E N FRIEAEEERZ iR
BIREBER - ZB O ESEEHER FE -
LRARKEARY BN=ZEEEER
TEREUERITEREHEF) 5% B
EERBHRR - FRAAEBEERERTE
HBERNRNKREEEZEREAR
4,795,0007T * LA IR B /B 7 #Y 18 2K LB o

R-ZBE—N\F ARAREERMN=F
(MI5E37) - BRHE R - AR R 2B
BELEERTES -

Bl Y

RN Z RS TiA R E SR
B 75 A R #59,800,0007% * 3 = — )\
F+-A=+—0 KEBHRARHR
A TRMNZER =T —/\E MR
B

g R EHRHR

- \FEEHE
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21. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21.

Aggregate information of the associate that is not individually

REtE N RER (&)

ERIB T EARNE SRR 2 BETER:

material:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
Aggregate carrying amount of GREMBREANERNBTENZ
individually immaterial associates in BE AR REAE
the consolidated financial statements - =
Aggregate amount of the Group’s REBEEBE QAREE
share of the associates’
Loss for the year FHNEE - -
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wk - =
Total comprehensive loss *HBEEE - =
22. INVENTORIES 22, FE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
Raw materials JRA R 1,290 2,027
Work in progress T m = 157
Finished goods BIRY G 767 7,808
Merchandise [EEE 8,857 29,377
10,914 39,369

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

ERRBAFAXAIAABRRZFEEHE

and included in profit or loss is as follows: DHIAT ¢
2018 2017
—E2-N\F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEREE

(note 10(c)) (Fff5E10(c)) 54,558 114,432
Write-off of inventories 7 E M 9,877 4,544
64,435 118,976
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, due to (i) the suspension
of production compartments and the fact that the effective dates
of certain inventories of the Group expired and could not be sold
or used in production; (ii) the fast changing of sentiment of electric
products market resulting in certain inventories of the Group became
outdated and could not be sold, the Group has written off inventories
amounted to approximately RMB9,877,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, due to the suspension
of production compartments and the fact that the effective dates of
certain inventories of the Group expired and could not be sold or
used in production, the Group has written off inventories amounted to
approximately RMB4,544,000.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 5 W RIA
B R R (BFEQ)

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowances (note (d))

Hofth [ YRR (FEEE()
RELERBEITZES
(Pi7E(Q))

Other receivables (note (f))

Investment in bond issued by a private
company (note (g))

Amount due from a related
company (note (e))

Financial assets measured REERAGTEY

at amortised cost SREE
Prepayments and deposits (note (g)) ENFERZE (HiEQ)
Other PRC tax receivables E B U A TR
Represented by: =
Current BN HA
Non-current JEENER

JE U — e B 2 R ROR (B RE(e))

22, FE (#&)
BEz—_Z—N\E+-_A=1+—HIL#F
B AR)EEEREERAEEET
FECIHATARELBIELE (i)
ETEMMEBGEREEZEYAEE
EFFEERARATTHE  AEEE
WETFE 4 A R¥9,877,0007T
BE-Z—+F+-A=+—HBI#F
E HREEEHEEFE AEBET
FEERAHEIHAETATHEKA
REE AESEEMBEFEENARE
4,544,000 ©

23. BSREWRERHEMEWIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
23,874 23,420
(972) -
22,902 23,420
49,322 891
11,390 =

2 3

83,616 24,314
82,565 56,811
1,046 1,954
167,227 83,079
108,127 83,079
59,100 =
167,227 83,079

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BZEWRIERHMERKIE
(&)

Notes: Bt 5 -

a) Prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered after more than one a) TEHEARB B — F LA W Bl TE A FRIE K
year is RMB59,100,000 (2017: RMB262,000). All of the other trade and other & B ARKS59,100,000T (ZF—t
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within F: ARM262,0007T) - EEAFT A H b
one year. B 5 PN RIE & H A FEGRIE S g 7 —

FAWEKHERBFL

b) The Group normally grants credit terms of 30 to 180 days (2017: 60 to 90 b) AEB-RMEEFRL0HEE180H
days) to its customers. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out (ZZ2—+F:608F0H)EEH-
in note 6(c). FRARSEEEBRNE—SHE #

T EES(C) ©
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables R|EBMR REZAHRNRRERE
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on the invoice date and B 25K E 5 EKRFIENRE DT
net of allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥FIT
0 to 30 days 0E30H 305 10,229
31 to 60 days 31H E60H 4,835 1,164
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 256 6,650
91 to 120 days 91H E120H 721 1,884
121 to 365 days 121H £365H 15,377 3,460
Over 365 days B iB365H 1,408 33
22,902 23,420

c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor c) W ER TFE R ERIERENE S B
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: RIBZREBRDTAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥FIT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 4 380 2R /1 A R (B 7,818 11,393
Past due but not impaired i BB R (E

1-30 days past due #HI1Z=30H 349 1,068

31-90 days past due #HA31E90H 7,693 744

More than 90 days past due i 483890 A 7,042 10,215

22,902 23,420

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BZRWFHARH MR RIR
(&)
Notes: (Continued) BiEE: (&)
d) The movements in the provision for impairment losses of trade receivables d) B 5 REWIE 2 BEBIEREZEHNT

were as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR%FT

At 1 January W—A—8 - -
Impairment loss recognised during the year & RHER 2 BE 5 1B 972 =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—AH 972 =

Prior to 1 January 2018, the Group recognised the allowance for certain trade
receivables which has been past due and considered as doubtful debts or
irrecoverable.

Starting from 1 January 2018, the Group applied simplified approach to
provide the expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. The impairment
methodology is set out in notes 2 and 6.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are aggregate carrying amounts of HK$15,084,000 and
HK$12,027,000 respectively which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not made impairment loss, as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable based on historical experience. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Loss allowance of RMB972,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018
has been recognised for trade receivables in accordance with the simplified
approach, that is, lifetime ECL set out in HKFRS 9.

The balance represented amount due from a related company, SZZ
International Group Holdings Limited, a company which is controlled by Ms.
Hung Hoi Lan, who is an executive director of the Company.

During the year, Agricultural Bank of China initiated legal actions against the
overdue bank loans (note 29), and certain property, plant and equipment and
land use rights which were pledged to the bank were mandatorily auctioned
through the local court in Jianyang City, Fujian Province, China (the “Court”),
and proceeds of approximately RMB32,895,000 were kept by the Court and
not yet transferred to the bank for loans settlement as at 31 December 2018.
As a result, the Group recorded receivable of auction proceeds in the line
item of “Other receivable”. Further on 15 March 2019, the remaining pledged
property, plant and equipment and land use rights were also auctioned
through the Court, with auction proceeds of RMB78,000,000 kept by the
Court.

The net carrying amount of the auctioned property, plant and equipment
and land use rights upon the completion of the aforementioned auctions are
approximately RMB Nil and RMB434,000 respectively.

RZZE-NF—A—H5 r&EE#ET
EARYBEERRXTATKREZEHE
ORI RE R R

BT \F-A—B AEEREE
B H 3RS AR RS9 2 R A AL T70%
I EEEBERELERE - RETERR
MiFE2 K26 ©

FEER T N\FR-ZZT—+tF+=
A=+—H2ESEBGELEHRBER
e BEIT @2 5 5 /A %015,084,0007%
7T % 12,027,000/ 70 2 BRE 4R 1 - T A%
B R E 2 EFEELRERE  RER
HEBERTERES A S BiRAT
KEA R IETIRAR e T U E - REE
WARRZSERIFTAETMIERR -

BE-T—\F+-A=+—BLFE"
REEFERBE (BB IERE%ER
BB HEHEEEB)NE S E
U 3R SR 5 1R B A R #6972,0007T

EHERR -—HBBEEAASZZ
International Group Holdings Limited
(—FHBEARRBRNTESTHRER L LE
H2 X 7)) B FRIA

FR-RERERTHBYETERR
BUARE1TE (M 29) BE TEEE
FRITOWE  BERZEA R T E
AEEERPEBREZES T HE
Be (AR 1) s 4% - MATSHKIELHA
R ¥32,895,0007T AR RE AR =F
—\F+ZA=+—BHRERTFRT
LABEE R o B - AR5 B iS EUCH E T
BFRIER [HE b fEURIE | TH AR ° Itk
N R—B-NFE=A+HB HBTEHE
Y - RE R 3% A R + {55 A 4 I
EBEBERIAE REMBREARE
78,000,0007T H A BR (R & ©

R ERIAFTRE  EHEYE  BER

AR A R - 3th {58 F B O BR LR B D B 40
RAREZ TR AR¥434,0007T °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BESEWHEREMEWRRIE

Notes: (Continued)

(%)

Bk ()

o) On 26 June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement (the “1st 9 RZE—-N\EXNAZ+X B AR FH
Agreement”) with a private company incorporated in Hong Kong (the “Bond —FERBEFME LR E QA ([EH
Issuer”) for the acquisition of bond issued by the Bond Issuer. Pursuant to the BOADRKBESFBEITARTZES
agreement, the bond carried coupon rate of 5% per annum, and to mature A ([E—HiHE]) - REHE -
105 days since the acceptance of the bond. Bond interests shall be settled BHEREMEREFS%:TE B E
on the maturity date. MiEH 2 BREH058 BIH - EHF B8

REBHBEE -
Further on 8 October 2018, the Company entered into a supplementary o RZZE—-NF+ANR KR
agreement (the “2nd Agreement”) with the Bond Issuer to renew the maturity MEHFEITAN LB ARE ([E=H
date of the bond to 31 December 2018, with other terms remaining the same W&l UEEFINERAEFTE=T
as the 1st Agreement. On 30 December 2018, the Company entered into —N\FE+ZA=+—8 MmEMIERKD
a supplementary agreement (the “3rd Agreement”) with the Bond Issuer to HE—HBBEER - R=_T—N\F+=
further renew the maturity date of the bond to 15 April 2019. Pursuant to the R=+TH ARAHEEFETATLE
3rd Agreement, all the accrued interests shall be settled together with the wHHE ([E=mHHE])  E—FH
principal amounts on 15 April 2019. BHEIMAEHZE-_T—NFNA+TH
H-REE=H1HE AR EER
AEBR-ZZE—AFHNA+RBTUE
A e
The Company holds the bond solely for collection of contractual cash flows RABERERBWURENBRERE (BB
which represent solely payments of principal and interests, and in the opinion BEAEERFEBEMFOMBEES A2
of the directors of the Company, the investment in the bond is measured at REERA REGF VIREHK ARG
amortised cost and included in the line item of “trade and other receivable” as EVR-_ZT—N\F+ZA=+—HiA
at 31 December 2018. (BRI FEREAERKEI BT
h) Included in prepayment and deposits there are approximately h) ERNRERRSBEFRTDERSLD

RMB59,100,000 non-current deposits, of which RMB46,760,000 was
related to acquisition of properties located in the PRC while the remaining
RMB12,340,000 was related to acquisition of plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, impairment loss of
RMB89,915,000 was recognised on the amount due from an associate (note
21). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the balance with this associate was
RMB Nil.

During the year, impairment loss of RMB189,649,000 was recognised on the
amount due from Hong Kong Sanai Health Care Products Company Limited
("HK Sanai HCP”) and its subsidiary (note 37). An impairment assessment
was made upon the disposal of HK Sanai HCP and its subsidiary and in the
opinion of directors of the Company, the recoverability of such receivables
was remote, and full impairment loss of RMB189,649,000 was recognised.

AR¥59,100,000T £ AR
46,760,0007T BB AR EH M ES
B - 8458 A R % 12,340,0007T &2 Uy &
BEREEER-

RBE-F—tE+-A=+—BILLE
R SR — B A RSB BRI
518 A . %89,915,0007% (M 3E21) «
—E-N\FR-FLFT-A=t—
A ERHEARZEBAAREET

RER REKEBE=ERERERA
AI([EE=ZERER]) REMNBARZ
FIBHER M E A8 A R%189,649,0007T
(KIE37) - HREEBFE =B REBMRE
BB A B BT EN G ARBEIES
E % 55 B UK 3RIE 2 AT U [B] M AR A

2REREEE AR189,649,000

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24, FEHEREWFE

2018 2017

—E2-N\F =55 = hE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T
Current portion of finance MERSRKHIELZ

lease receivables BN EREB > 91,305 42,982
Non-current portion of finance RERESRKRIELZ

lease receivables FEBNEREL & 9,027 29,878

100,332 72,860
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FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

BMERSEWRIR (&)

Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
BREHEERE BEEENERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF —E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR®T R AREFTL
Not later than one year —FR 97,724 47,476 91,305 42,982
Later than one year and not later BE—FETBAME
than two years 9,345 31,552 9,027 29,878
107,069 79,028 100,332 72,860
Less: Unearned finance income B RERBBKE (6,737) (6,168) - =
Present value of minimum lease REEKBEFEREA
payments receivables 100,332 72,860 100,332 72,860
Less: Current portion of finance BB ERERYGRUR
lease receivables ZHEE S (91,305) (42,982)
Non-current portion of finance BMEHERNFIEL
lease receivables FERNE B 9,027 29,878

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the finance lease receivables are
secured over the leased assets represented mainly by machineries
and equipment.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral of finance
lease receivables in the absence of approval by the lessee. All the
Group’s finance lease receivables are denominated in RMB, the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

The weighted average term of finance leases entered into is 1.8 years
(2017: 3 years) and all the leases require repayment by instalments.
In the event the lessee breaches the lease contract, the Group has
the right to use or sell the assets leased and to call for full or partial
repayment of the outstanding balance of finance lease receivables. At
the end of the finance lease term, the lessee will be able to purchase
the leased assets at nominal price.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The average effective interest rate is
approximately 6.7% per annum (2017: 6.6% per annum). The finance
lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither past
due nor impaired.

RZE—+FRT—-—NE+=A
=+—H pEREERKFEMKEZ
HEEETZAKRERZE-

EABALBERENERT AEED
A ESBERRERERKTUA 2K
i AREZPAARERERYEGR
BUAARBHE ARBRIEHEER
BzUEE

BMEREZ MEFHERRI8F (=F
—tF:=F) AR BERESNR
BB -ERMEAERBLO AEEE#
HAREEEEEEE -ABAEEE
RERE D EEREHE IR
BZAREBEEH -RBEEERR &
HAFRZARERERENEEE-

REEHESHA BEMNXRUARBH
FFETEAE - FTHEBRFMNENA
6.7% (ZZT —+tF: FF6.6%) - NIk
HHR pERERKFIEARBEA KR
/JEKTEL*

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The balance represented loan advance to an independent third party.
The balance was unsecured, bearing interest at 12% per annum and
repayable on 29 March 2018. The outstanding balance has been fully

settled by 26 March 2018.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

Listed equity securities on Hong Kong &6 E gz #E 5

As at 31 December 2018, the financial assets at FVPL represented

the trading equity securities of RMB6,387,000.

The fair values of the above listed securities were determined based
on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of RMB1,790,000
are recognised in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss (note 10).
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26.

EREWIR

HEHRERN T 2B E = FNER
ZIE B EIAR R FE R R12%:T 8.
YER-_FBE—N\F=A-+LBEE-
REEBHEBER T N\FZA -+
AZRERSEE -

BAVEFABRSEZERERE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETF T
6,387 =

W=E—NF+=A=+—H BAT
B A2 SRAEAL HRAES
AR #6,387,0007T ©

A5 B 25 2 A TAE T AR 5 B 32 P i
Rz 5 MEETE -

BEz—_Z—N\E+-_A=+—HIHF
B BATEHABEZERMEELT
EE 18 &5 AR 1,790,000 R R A
BERPHMTERAS] (M3E10) P
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 27. BeRBESEEYREMBESRE
INFORMATION

a)

b)

Cash and cash equivalent comprise:

ax

a) RERRSLEEVYEE:

2018 2017
ot e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T
Bank balances and cash (note (i) #7745 8% MIRE (MIRE()) 17,745 13,242
Cash held by financial institution & B#EERFH 2T & (M)
(note (i) - 48,483
Cash and cash equivalents in tRE B SRR R
the consolidated statement RERERERAZ
of financial position and RERBESEEY
consolidated statement of
cash flows 17,745 61,725
Notes: B 5

i) Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates.

i) RITR ST HRITERA R
HH)F BT R RIS -

ii) Cash held by financial institution by the Group represents amounts ii) AEEZ SREERBENRESE

deposited in financial institution in Hong Kong and does not carry any

FRABESREEATHEN

interest rate. FRIE -

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities b) ®METBAELEZEBEZHE

Secured

bank loans

BRBRITER

RMB’000

ARBTF T

At 1 January 2017 R-B—t&—H—H 85,600

Changes from financing cash flows MmEREREL 196,342
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—tF+=A

=+t-BR=Z-N\§—-A—H 281,942

Changes from financing cash flows MERSREL (2,844)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) LEME QA (FiFE37) (45,306)

At 31 December 2018 R=Z-—N\E&+-A=+—H 233,792

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS
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As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date is as follows:

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. BEFEMNFMIERHEMENTIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Trade payables B 5 e FIE 1,159 4,101
Payroll and welfare payables A EH e kEF 744 1,042
Accrued charges AT E A 20,499 2,316
Other payables (note b) H th pE AT 5RE (M sEb) 24,949 5,338

Financial liabilities measured RBHKARTHEZ
at amortised cost ETMAE 47,351 12,797
Other PRC tax payables o e R B AR IR 189 172
Receipt in advance TEW K TE 897 947
Deposits received BIRIRES 5,722 4,640
54,159 18,556

Analysed as: DA

Non-current (note (a)) ERB) (W) 5,722 4,640
Current mE 48,437 13,916
54,159 18,556

RBEHR ABEZAMASERNMZE
S8 BN FIARNRE DT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 55 1,357
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H - 165
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H - 469
91 to 120 days 91H ZE120H - 536
121 to 365 days 121 H £365H 146 1,674
Over 365 days H3@365H 958 =
1,159 4,101

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

Fii A 8 5 FE A 5008 S EL A (S SRIR TR
RN —F A RIREREE -
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Note:

a) The balance represented deposits received from customers in respect of
finance lease business (note 24). The amounts are expected to be received
after one year and was classified as non-current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

b) Included in other payables there are amount due to a private company of

RMB10,000,000 with monthly interest rate of 5%, and repayable 6 months
after the date the Group received such amount.

SECURED BANK LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of secured bank loan is as
follows:

BERMRBITER

Secured bank loans

At 31 December 2018, land use rights with a net book value of
approximately RMB3,827,000 (2017: RMB6,040,000) (note 17) and
property, plant and equipment with a net book value of approximately
RMB27,431,000 (2017: RMB28,547,000) (note 16) were pledged
to a bank as collateral against the bank loans. The bank loans carry
interest at fixed rates of 4.57% to 6.31% (2017: 4.57% to 6.31%) per
annum. The security will be released upon settlement of the loans.

At 31 December 2018, the Group defaulted on the repayment of
its secured bank loans and repayment of loan principal and related
interests totaling approximately RMB248,311,000 were not made
in accordance with the agreed repayment schedules pursuant to
the loan agreements. One of the banks had disposed of certain
assets pledged by the Group as security for its facilities under
mandatory auctions. The proceeds from the auctions approximately
to RMB32,895,000 will be set-off against certain overdue bank
loans. Remaining pledged assets were sold at RMB78,000,000 in
another auction conducted in March 2019 (2017: approximately
RMB120,042,000 interest bearing loans expired whereas the Group
carried out discussion with the banks in respect of renewal of bank
loans for another year. All other interest-bearing bank loans were due
for repayment within one year).

28.

29.

BZRANREREMENE

a) EARERREEEEBAZT PRI R
EE (ME24) -ZFFREHN—F&
WE WitkR e B RR KPS ERIE
MR-

(b) Hib A FORBIER N — ML E R R
18 A R #10,000,0007T + A % & £5%
ARAE B EZE IR A RN E A
MEE -

BEFRITERK

BERMBITEROFREESFTNOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
233,792 281,942

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—RH EH
BEFHEHAARKS3827,000L (=&
—+tF: AR¥6,040,0007T) (&
17) M A R BREESF RN A A
R¥27,431,000L (ZZE—+F: AR
#08,547,0007T) (MizE16) B9 ¥ % - IR
EREBERIETFRITIEARITER
MR- RITERZRETEMNENT
457T%E6.31% (ZZE—+HF :457%%
6.31% ) sF B -NEEBEER KIFHE
R BR o

RZE—N\F+-ZA=+—0 K&£H
MR (EEEEMBIRITEE R
BEERBEZETERTEEEE
FAERIAHBANECBHOARE
248,311,0007T ° & A — [E $R 17 98 ) 8
B HEAEEEAKTRIKIF RS
HRE v ETEE-MEAMEREHA
R #32,895,0007T 4% F3 {E K §5 75 T 781 HA
BITER B TERBEER=_Z—AN
FZREFTZE " FHEBERIAUARSE
78,000,000t Z B EHE(ZZT—+
F : 4 AR #120,042,0007T 2 5T B8R 1T
BRE2IH - A5 B B8R 1T 51 5w 48 27
BITER—F-FTEHMTBRITER
R—FRE|HEE) -
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e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30. MAEHEEMBMRRRAZFAER
FINANCIAL POSITION
a)  Current taxation/(tax recoverable) in the consolidated a) MREEVERRRAZEHHE
statement of financial position represents: (AT ERiE) I5
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT
Provision for the year NF S AR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMER 267 159
PRC EIT o 1h PTG 919 575
PRC EIT paid for the year FASNFBEREMEH (429) (287)
Balance of provision for the PRC £ F—FE BRI 2 B3
EIT relating to prior year RSt 2 ek 1,133 652
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) &K@ QA (M5E37) (988) =
Effect of foreign currency INEEN ZRE o HE
exchange differences 17 34
919 1,133
Represented by: 15
Current taxation EHIBIE 1,221 1,435
Tax recoverable A] Uk B 75 TR (302) (302)
919 1,133
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) CEEREEHBEEREE:
i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets i) EEHELEEREESS
and liabilities T2 EE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEREGE MBI T
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial iR ZIELERE (BE)
position and the movements during the year are as JSBESD REBNT
follows:
Impairment
Related loss on
depreciation Fair value property  Impairment  Withholding
in excess of adjustments plant and loss on tax on
depreciation on intangible equipment land use distributable
allowances assets Y% -HRE rights profits
Deferred tax EEEUTH BBTERE BYEE R#REN AR ARAE Total
arising from: BEBE: WARETE ATENRE REEE AEEE W MB Az
RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB0O00  RMBI000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—+—A—A (45,004) 996 (120,021) @621) 12,740 (156,000
(Credited/charged) to profit or loss R B#A (5 A/ k) 31,880 (996) 84,850 3,266 (2,846) 116,154
At 31 December 2017 and R-FB—+t&+=-A=+-H
as at 1 January 2018 R=E—/\E—A—A (13.214) 5 (35,171) (1,355) 9,804 (39,846)
(Credited)/charged to profitor loss  HE3A (5 A) /0B 13,214 - 35,171 1,355 (4,863) 44,877
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F+-A=+-H - - - - 5,031 5,031

146

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued)

Y

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities (Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or place
of business in the PRC will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate of 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. Pursuant to the double tax arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong effective on 1 January
2007, the withholding income tax rate will be reduced to
5% if the investment by the Hong Kong investor in the
investee entities in the PRC is not less than 25%. On
22 February 2008, the State Administration of Taxation
approved Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to which
dividend distributions out of retained earnings of foreign
investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will
be exempted from withholding income tax. As at 31
December 2018, deferred tax liabilities of RMB5,031,000
(2017: RMB9,894,000) in respect of the withholding
income tax on dividends has been recognised by the
Group.

Withholding tax on dividends represents tax charged by
the PRC tax authority on dividends distributed by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC during the year.

30. REEMBURRERANZAER

(%)

b) ERABLEHREERES:

(4

&)

FEAEHBEEEREEES
D EE ()

BEEB-ZEZENF—HA—
AREMN P ECEMS
Bk - WIEFEA B sk
EEPRREEE Y
EERMHE SRR
REFBERELELH D
B BURAERR £ FEe
TE R B AR ST B AP B A 3D,
BB EEREME  BA
MEZEWHE WA (LR
th A2 IS ) 1R10%7H0
RENFEIETISH - iRIEP
HEBEBFTUIR_ZEE
+tE—A—B4ARNES
BRI WEBREEY
FEEEEEENRET
LR25%  BIFBFNFT SRR
RETHEER R _EE
NEZA=-+-H BExRH
T4 48 JB 4t/ B B4 (2008) 5 1
S HNEREST
T+E+-A=+—HZ
AR B8 2 F) P B /9 %
B RS R % 8T B0
s -N_E—N\FE+=
A=+—8 A£EEHMK
BIEA SR HERIELERH
IH & & A ARS5,031,000
T(ZZT—tF: AR
9,894,0007T ) °

B B TBFNTHE F A B AR
BHEARAEERNHEH
o8 2 A 0 Ik 9 B B R
IR -
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e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued)

i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability

BRERBEE
ELEHARE

REEMBRR KA ZFAER

(%)

b) CEIELEHRHEEEREE:

(%)

i) HEEEHBMRXER

2018 2017

= —E—tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
- (49,740)

5,031 9,894
5,031 (39,846)

c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB383,276,000
(2017: RMB279,667,000) as at 31 December 2018 as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation except for tax losses of RMB366,777,000 (2017:
RMB271,510,000) in PRC which is available for carry forward
to set-off future assessable income for a period of five years, as

follows:

Tax losses will expire in:

c) AEREEHREEE

RIEM FE2(NFTE S 5T IRR - AR
B 1% FE R Bl 0% B KA BE B 1
KEHE N BRI EEE R
FERANREBE WAEEL
BER_E—N\F+_A=+—
BB R2ABEBEHOARE
383,276,0007T (Z T —+tF: A
R #279,667,0007T ) fERIE LT
HEE-REBERITHRE ZHE
BiEAgER ERFEATIE
B8 AR #366,777,0007T (==
—+tF: AR#271,510,0007T)
AIAREEREARAFHMZ
JERBIURALATR ¢

IR LAT BERRIER

2021
2022
2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z—ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

31. BARRHE

a) ERARBH S

AEEZEARARTEILDN
FORFEREREEREAER
RN - ANRE) 2 & ([EHE

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of A W E ) R EREEFFIFT
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set BT
out below:
Retained
Share profits/
Share Share option  (accumulated
capital premium reserve losses) Total
RE&EH/
The Company KAF R BHEE  BRERE (RHER) @t
(note 31(b)  (note 31(c)(i)
(Hrss1))  (HI&E310))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETr AREFT  ARETRn
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tE—-A—-B2&H 21,762 1,047,038 19,916 82,678 1,171,394
Shares issued upon exercise of share  {T{¢ R E& %11 2 R (D
options (note 3116 (H2£31(0)(i)) 1415 63,659 (19,916) - 45,158
Shares issued under placement RERERTIRN
(note 31(o)i) (BH2E31 (o)) 3,832 84,878 - - 88,710
Loss and total comprehensive ENEERZEBELE
loss for the year - - - (1,122,383) (1,122,383)
Balance at 31 December 2017 and  W=Z—+%F+-A=+-H
1 January 2018 k=E-\¥—-A-H
288 27009 1195575 - [1,039,705) 182,879
Shares issued upon exercise of share T (F BB Rk % 17 2 KA
options (note 31(b)fi) (BE31(0)()) 1,592 50,379 (8767) . 52,204
Equity settled share-based IEREENRNAER
transactions payment RBHHR - = 10,481 = 10,481
Loss and total comprehensive FRAEERZEEEAR
loss for the year - - - (9,693) (9,693)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\§+ZR=1-H
LR 28,601 1,254,954 1,714 (1,049,398) 235,871
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b) Share capital

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

At beginning of the year
Increase during the year (note 31(b)(i))

At the end of the year

Issued and fully paid:

Shown in the consolidated and

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

At the beginning of the year

Shares issued upon exercise of
share options (note 31(b)(ii))

Shares issued under placement
(note 31 (o))

At end of the year

Company’s statements of

31. BARHHE (&)

EE:

SREEO BTHLRRK
REA
FE g (FEE31(0)())

RER

BEIRAR:
FRAMBOT ATHLER
REA)
IEBREERTZRG
(B 31 (o)) )
RERELT RN
(B &E31(b)(i))

RER

R+ZZA=+—H2Z

AR BB AR S R P 5

financial position at 31 December

b) KX
2018 2017
“E-N\E e 3

No. of No. of

shares shares
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000

RHEE RHEE
(k) THET (F&) FET
10,000,000 100,000 3,200,000 32,000
- - 6,800,000 68,000
10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2,872,123 28,721 2,256,773 22,568
195,100 1,951 164,000 1,640
- - 451,350 4513
3,067,223 30,672 2,872,123 28,721
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETT

e

28,601 27,009

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary share rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018

Pursuant to the Annual General Meeting held on 16
June 2017, the shareholders approved the increase
in authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$32,000,000 divided into 3,200,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each to HK$100,000,000 divided
into 10,000,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01.

TR AR EE IR
Mk RBRERARAASG LT
BE—F-mEEBEREFMAA
AREARBEENHEZFEREH

fiL

)
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ZX #132,000,0005% 7T 2 A
3,200,000,0008% & A% @
f50.0178 JT /9 % {7 35 0
%£100,000,000/& T 2 &
10,000,000,000/% & & ™
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b) Share capital (Continued)

i)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, share
options under the share option scheme were exercised
to subscribe for 195,100,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$63,958,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB52,204,000), of which approximately HK$1,951,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,592,000) was
credited to the share capital and the balance
of approximately HK$62,007,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB50,612,000) was credited to the
share premium account. An amount of approximately
HK$10,761,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB8,767,000) was transferred from share option
reserve to the share premium account in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, share
options under the share option scheme were exercised
to subscribe for 164,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$52,480,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB45,158,000), of which approximately HK$1,640,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,415,000) was
credited to the share capital and the balance
of approximately HK$50,840,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB43,743,000) was credited to the
share premium account. An amount of approximately
HK$22,960,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB19,916,000) was transferred from share option
reserve to the share premium account in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

31. BARRHME (&)

b) BRA (&)

i

BHz_ZE—N\%+=-A
=+—RALTFE BRE
FTEIT Z BRI T A
28 N A F195,100,000
BEBRE REAEY
63,958,000 7T (45 R
AR#52,204,0007T - E
491,951,000 7T (KSR
AR #1592 0007T) 5F A
J% 7K T &4 38 4962,007,000
BILX(HWERARE
50,612,0007¢ ) 5 AR5 i
BER) - #910,761,0007 7T
(%5 W AR ¥8,767,000
TO)IRBAEEE TR A
BREFEEERDRE
B

BE2_ZET—+&%+=-A
=+—RALTFE BRE
FTEIT Z BRI T A
8 7N A 7164,000,000
BEBRE REAEY
52,480,000 7T (K9 & K
AR #45,158,0007T » H
491,640,000 7T (KSR
AR #1,415,0007T) 5F A
J% 7K T &5 38 4950,840,000
BILX(HWERARE
43,743,00070) sF AR5 i
BER) - #922,960,0007 7T
(HER AREE19,916,000
TO)RBAEE ST ERA
BRiEFEEERDRE
(@@ °

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

151



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

b)

Share capital (Continued)

i)

Shares issued under placement

On 13 October 2017, the Company entered into
placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place, through the placing agent, on a best effort
basis, up to 451,350,000 placing shares to not
less than six independent placees at the placing
price of HK$0.24 per placing share.

The placing was completed on 6 November 2017.
A total of 451,350,000 placing shares, had been
placed to not less than six independent places
at the placing price of HK$0.24 per placing
share. The net proceeds from the placing after
deducting relevant expenses of approximately
HK$3,841,000 incurred in relation to the placing,
amounted to approximately HK$104,483,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB88,710,000),
of which RMB3,832,000 and RMB84,878,000
were credited to the share capital and the share
premium account respectively.
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31.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

c) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

i)

Share premium

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which a dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Special reserve
Special reserve represents the aggregate of:

the difference between the consideration paid
by a subsidiary of the Company, Sanai BVI, for
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Fujian Sanai and the nominal value of the paid-
in capital of Fujian Sanai pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2007;

the difference between the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company and the amount
of share capital of Sanai BVI acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2007; and

the difference between the consideration paid
for the acquisition of additional interests in
Fuzhou Sanai and the carrying values of the
underlying net assets attributable to the additional
interests in Fuzhou Sanai pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2007. Such difference was
released upon the disposal of Fuzhou Sanai in
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

i)

iv)

v)

Vi)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the capital contributions
from Mr. Lin Qing Ping, a former director and former
shareholder of the Company; and Fuzhou Hongyu, a
company controlled by Mr. Lin Ouwen, also a former
director and the former chief executive officer of the
Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations
for foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate
10% of their profit after tax to the reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital and
thereafter any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make
up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of a capitalisation
issue.

Non-distributable reserve

In accordance with the Articles of Association of Fujian
Sanai, Fujian Sanai may appropriate funds to the non-
distributable reserve at the discretion of its board of
directors. According to the Articles of Association of
Fujian Sanai, the non-distributable reserve can be used
to (i) make up prior year losses; (i) convert into capital,
provided such conversion is approved by a resolution
at a shareholders’ meeting; and (i) expand production
operation.

Share option reserve

This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised
share options granted to eligible participants of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q)(ii).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

c)

d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

vii)  Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(u).

Distributability of reserves

Under the Cayman Companies Law, share premium is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium if (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital account.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB205,556,000 (2017: RMB155,870,000) computed
in accordance with the Cayman Companies Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association. This includes
the Company’s share premium of RMB1,254,594,000
(2017: RMB1,195,575,000), less accumulated loss of
RMB1,049,398,000 (2017: less accumulated loss of
RMB1,039,705,000), which is available for distribution provided
that immediately following the date on which a dividend is
proposed, the Company will be able to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 31. BAKfEHE (8)
e)  Capital management e) BESER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes trade and other payables, secured bank loans and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. During 2018, the Group’s strategy
was unchanged from 2017. The directors review the
capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption
of existing debts.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December
2018 and 2017 was as follows:

AEEEREES UHERKNE
WE B e AR B E
HEE RIS B EEAE S M
Az MR ERN T AR
B KB ¥ -

rEBZEAEBREGS B
TEEESENFIERE MmN
FIR - BEMRITERRARE
BHEAEGER BREBTK
KRR (-

ARBEREEFF—RRIE
rEB-R_E—-N\F ~&E
ZRME R R~ FARL I R
H-ERFBREBERNZRAR
HEEHEAHERZ BB E
AAEE - RIFEFERE ARER
BBBITH D KA A BB A K
BIOTHEFREBELRAESFNT
LIRS NCT

R-B—\FR-F—+5+=
A=+—BAREERE Y FE
RLLEDT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETF T

Trade and other payables B 5 FE AT /I8 R H fth FE A 5018 54,159 18,556
Secured bank loan BEMRITER 233,791 281,942
Total debt 1&g 287,951 300,498
Total equity e 71,527 219,225
Debt-to-equity ratio fERELL & 402.58% 137.07%

AN B) R B AR AR B B 2 R A
BEMIEBEARENR

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme on 8 January 2007

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 8 January 2007 (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to and
recognising significant contributions from directors and eligible
employees, and expired on 31 January 2017. Under the Old
Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant options to all full-
time employees, directors (including independent non-executive
directors) and part-time employees with weekly working hours of
10 hours and above, of the Group, substantial shareholders of each
member of the Group, associates of the directors and substantial
shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust pre-
approved by the Board, and any advisor (professional or otherwise) or
consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner,
service provider of the Group whom the Board considers, at its sole
discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the date of listing of the shares on
the Stock Exchange which represents 164,300,000 shares (excluding
the over-allotment portion) or 7% of issued share capital of the
Company, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under this
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under this Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company if such limit is
exceeded. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue or with an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon payment of a
consideration of HK$1.00 by the grantee. Options may be exercised
at any time and settled by shares immediately from the date of
grant of the share options or during the period as notified by the
directors at the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant,
(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.
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32.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share option scheme on 16 June 2017

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the
Company adopted another share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for, amongst others, the senior management and
employees, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract, retain
and motivate staff. The New Share Option Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21 June 2017 (save
that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the New Share
Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board
may grant options to all full-time employees, directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and part-time employees
with weekly working hours of 10 hours and above, of the Group,
substantial shareholders of each member of the Group, associates
of the directors and substantial shareholders of any member of the
Group, trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, and any
advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier,
agent, customer, joint venture partner, service provider of the Group
whom the Board considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or
contributes to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption of the New Share Option Scheme (namely, 233,877,250
shares, representing approximately 8.14% of the Company’s issued
shares as at the date of this annual report), without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company shall
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and to
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
grant, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
requires the approval of the independent non-executive directors
(excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the share options). Options granted in any 12-month period to
a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing
in aggregate more than 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the
date of grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share option scheme on 16 June 2017 (Continued)

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. A share option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that such period of
time shall not be more than ten years from the date of grant. The New
Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum period for which
a share option must be held nor a performance target which must be
achieved before a share option can be exercised. However, the Board
may, at its sole discretion, determine such terms and impose such
other restrictions on the grant of a share option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the offer date which must be a business day, (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

Movements of Share options granted/exercised

At 31 December 2018, a total of 223,400,000 shares (representing
approximately 7% of the existing issued share capital at 31
December 2018 of the Company) may be issued upon exercise of
all share options which were granted under the New Share Option
Scheme. The weighted average remaining contractual life is 4.4
years.

No vesting period or vesting condition on the share options and the
share options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
and within a period of five years from the date of grant.

At 31 December 2017, no share options was granted by the

Company under the New Share Option Scheme.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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32.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Movements of Share options granted/exercised (Continued)

i

i)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

Qutstanding at beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year (note (i)

Qutstanding at end of the year

Exercisable at the end of
the year

Note:

EMHARTTE
FAKH
FRTTR ()
FREARITHE

FRAFITE

i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the weighted average

closing market price of the Company’s shares immediately before

the respective dates on which the share option were exercised was

HK$0.39.

Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Binomial Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this

model.

32. UREREEURNDAER 2XRS
(&)
el BOEZERESS (&)
] FEARESE B RntEFHTEEN
T
2018 2017
—E2-N\F I
Weighed Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IEF L3 AR e MEFS  REBERE
e 28 TEE BAROHE
- - HK$0.3287C 164,000,000
HK$0.33% T 233,400,000 - -
HK$0.337%8 7t 195,100,000 HK$0.32& L 164,000,000
HK$0.337 7t 38,300,000 - -
HK$0.3378 7T 38,300,000 - -
B 3 -
i) RBE-_Z-—N\F+ZA=+—
BIEFE RAARBRHDRESRE
RRAEIESTIE B HA AT Z A UL
B AFTR0.39E T
i) BREZAFERER
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Movements of Share options granted/exercised (Continued)
i) Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued)

ARE MR
~NFt+ZAZ+-BLEE

32. LIESEEURGA/BER IS

(%)

EREEBOEBREZE ()
i)  EREZDFEREE (E)

24/5/2018 30/5/2018
—E2-N\F —Z2-N\F
HFA-+MA HA=+H
Fair value at measurement date RETEHBZATE HK$0.057% 7T HK$0.067% 7T
Share price & (& HK$0.32/& 7T HK$0.3357% 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.32/8 7T HK$0.3357% 7T
Expected volatility (expressed TEHR R (AR ZIER
as weighted average volatility used TR AU B R AR N4
in the modelling under Binomial Model)  F## 1857~ ) 49.85% 49.68%
Option life (expressed as BRI (AR ZTEAE
weighted average life used in AIFTER A
the modelling under IR A F TR
the Binominal Model) 5 years & 5 years F
Expected dividends TEHARR B Nil &% Nil &%
Risk-free interest rate == b R = 2.188% 2.073%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these
share options were granted to the employees, directors of
the Company for recognising their services to the Group,
and certain share options were granted to consultants for
rendering miscellaneous services to the Group. Since the
services provided by consultants are such unique that the
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of share option
granted.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
RMB10,481,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB Nil) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

—EREEXEEARAT

T8 HA R 08 TYAR R I SL R R (AR %
BRI INIE IO RIS F HIFT &
FRE UREAHAITAEMRR
KEBEAZS ML FE - EH
BB TIRBEBERE Jrﬁ TE
NEABERBRRESD G QT
TE@JEEEKWE

ARBEERR ZEBRED
BTARAZEBERES FR
HEMAEEEHERE 2RR

W T AAREERHEMEERE 2
RMAETHERE - ANEAA
REZRBAFE ERFEE
AR SR MR HIRE 2R
PR R EE -

AEBRERBEZE_Z—N\F+=
A=+—HBLFEEARAERD
HEREEENERSIHARE
10,481,000 (ZZF—+4F: AR
BETIL) o

- \FEEHE

161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 and 2017
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for BT #
— Acquisition of intangible assets —WEErEE
- Acquisition of a subsidiary — W EE— M B A
— Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
— Capital injection in
an associate

—IE—RHBE QR

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

—FNRN
—FRERFA

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group leases office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land under operating
leases are described in note 17.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2018

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

—BEME BB NERE

33. EKIE
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=+ — B AR EHRE NEHRA E R
EBEEAERENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETF T
8,100 8,100
7,650 =
12,395 =
9,800 =
37,945 8,100

34, KEHENRE

REEEREBA

RZE—-N\F+=—A=+—8 &T%
FHEMO AT BEECERN T ZRK
BRMALEENT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
896 1,387

160 478

1,056 1,865
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specified percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties during the year:

a) As at 31 December 2016, included in other receivables was
amount due from a related party of RMB2,540,000. The related
party is the key management personnel of a subsidiary of the
Group. The amount due was fully impaired during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
representing amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 11 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 12, is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payments

BE R (R AR A
VAR A0 73 2B 2 A4 3K
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BEARSHET:
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READ YR 2 R EEAT
FIE A AR #2,540,0007T ° I B
BATALAEE—HEHBRARZ
FEEBEAB FEURHEREZE
—T—+F+ZA=+—HItF
ERERE

b) FEEEASHMHN
FEBNTZEBASHM (A
A FHFEVI R BN AR R E
ERMEI2FRENE T RS

MEE 2&B)WT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F - 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AREFTT
2,012 1,179
69 -
2,318 .
4,399 1,179
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

On 31 October 2018, the Group disposed of Hong Kong Sanai
Health Care Products Company Limited (“HK Sanai HCP”) and
Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (“Fuzhou Sanai”)
where HK Sanai HCP engaged in investment holding and Fuzhou
Sanai engaged in investment holding, develop, manufacture,
marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products. Both companies did
not carried out any business during the year.

HEMEAF

BHE-Z-N\F+ZA=1t-HLEFE
R-ZE-NF+A=t—H AEEHH
%%5%5@1%@&%@@5((%\%5
EREMDEBMN=ZEHEZXARA

(MEM=%1)" ,H\EFE/%*mﬁ%ﬁ;un
feEmBERER MEMN=ERXERER
B BEEMMR BUE EHRHE-
a%ﬁﬁsﬁ BIRF RIS ARF RAER T -

2018
—B-NF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWEBRE RekREEED) 118
Total consideration received B U EERE 118
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which EEAESECEERBES N
control was lost
Current assets B EE
Other receivables H h fE W R IE 80
Cash and cash equivalents BekReE f"i ) 25,142
Current liabilities BB &
Amount due to group companies ERHEERRKE (189,649)
Other payables H e IR (4,879)
Current taxation B EAFR 18 (988)
Secured bank loans BEBRITER (45,306)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEZBEFE (215,600)
Release of reserves upon disposal HERELFE 19,105
(196,495)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB DRz W&
Consideration receivable ERRE 118
Net liabilities disposed of BEHECBEFE 215,600
Release of reserves upon disposal o B [ 4 (19,105)
Gain on disposal 0B s 196,613
The gain on disposal is included in the loss for the year. H & Wz 6 7 1 A F E B8 A
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARBELEZRSR L FHE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWBRARE(RELARESEEY) 118
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of B :EHEZIRE KRS SEMES (25,142)
(25,024)

The English name is presented for identification purposes only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

On 21 December 2017, the Group disposed of FBEE =T B & E 5
ERAR (“ZEEEES”) which engaged in marketing and sales
of pharmaceutical products. = E & %% 5 did not carried out any

business during the year.

37. HEKMBERR (&)

BE-_Z—tF+=-A=+—HLEE
RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H X&E
HEREE-EBEESERAR ([=
ERHBS|) HEXTENEBHEERE
HREE —EREEINF AL EE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents
Total consideration received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost

Current assets
Other receivables

Amount due from group company

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Net assets disposed of
Release of reserves upon disposal

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Consideration receivable”

Waiver of amount due to a subsidiary
Net assets disposed of

Release of reserves upon disposal

Gain on disposal

The gain on disposal is included in the loss
for the year.

Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of

i The consideration receivable was RMB100.

TR -
2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARET T
BRBARE (R RREEEY) -
B ER AR (E =
ERARFEZEEREBEIN
B EE
i fE U SR TE 34
EWEERFFIE 31,600
HERBEE
M BE KR E 6
BEHECEEFEAE 31,640
HERE B (786)
30,854
HE—BHRBARZWE
FEWRE i
B —ENBARZREZ BK 31,600
EHECEEFE (31,640)
LB R R 786
B E W= 746

HERSBRRAFEBEA-

HE-—BNBLARREEZ
RERAFH
ERBRE(RERRESEEY)
W EREZRERREEEY

. KRR ERAARBI00T

—EREEXEBERAT « —E-N\FFERS

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

38. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. NRIEBEMEMRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & ARBT T AREFT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZEE 76 76
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e W 5B 234,059 135,936
Financial assets at fair value ERFEFABERZ
through profit or loss SREE 6,387 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEECEEY 179 49,343
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H b e~ FUE 4,829 2,476
Net current assets REBEEFE 235,796 182,803
Net assets EEZHE 235,872 182,879
Capital and reserves EARRFEE 31(a)
Share capital % 28,601 27,009
Reserves i 207,271 155,870
Total equity B 235,872 182,879

39. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 39. MIREHEBRKERE ZEIE

PERIOD

i) On 28 March 2019, the Group entered into an agreement RZE—NAF=ZA=+/\B &

with an independent third party (the “1st Vendor”), that the
1st Vendor agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to acquire,
the entire equity interest of Fujian Zhixin Medicine Company
Limited at a consideration of RMB2,000,000. The acquisition is
not yet completed as at the date of this report.

On 28 March 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party (the “2nd Vendor”), that the
2nd Vendor agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to acquire,
the entire equity interest of Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory
Limited at a consideration of HK$19,500,000. The acquisition
is not yet completed at the date of this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle'

u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
. Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

40.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

40.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised assets and the
related finance lease liabilities for finance lease arrangement where
the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within
the same line item at which the corresponding underlying asset would
be presented if they were owned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,056,000 as disclosed in note 34. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon the application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of approximately HK$273,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets. Accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use deposits. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening accumulated losses without restating comparative
information.
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40.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax
position when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
interpretation requires an entity to determine whether uncertain
tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and assess
whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax
filings.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a prepayment feature meets the solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI”) condition,
the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason
i.e. prepayment features with negative compensation do not
automatically fail SPPI.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following four
standards.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the
case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed
and undistributed profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-Z

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control of a
business that is a joint operation, the entity applies the requirements
for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring
its previously held interest in the joint operation at fair value. The
previously held interest to be remeasured includes any unrecognised
assets, liabilities and goodwill relating to the joint operation.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation that is a business
obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not
remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEHEHE

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Other income
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land
use rights
Impairment loss on intangible
asset
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on due from
an associate
Impairment loss on investment
in an associate
Impairment loss on
trade receivables
Impairment loss on other
receivable
Written off on property,
plant and equipment
Written off on inventory
Finance costs
Share of results of an associate

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Dividends paid

(Loss)/earnings per share
- Basic and diluted

Yz
HEKA

£/ (§)
H it fozs

HETHERERDE

BEREEF
Wiz / (E#8)
DEEA
THER
ME - BEREEND
REER
i RRRERE
BYRERESR
HERERS
Y —RBE AR
FREBE
R E DA
BREREER
B 5 ERFBRERE
Hi R FBREEE
nE - BEREZEME
FEMH
B R A
EREE AR EE

BHE (BR)/8H
Frish

FR(E8),/ 57

THALRES:
ARAEBA

ENBE

&k (B18) /&7
—EAREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

CRh &b

Be B
I
S

AEFE

ES

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=+-HILFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—Z-|mF —Z-hHF —B-RE —B+F A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBETT AREFT AREFT ARETTT
549,625 555,652 263,025 62,534 64,123
(431,601) (436,045) (245,062) (119,311) (64,475)
118,024 119,607 17,963 (66,777) (352)
1,846 1,978 14,196 1,803 207,568
- 35,003 (7) - 32,458
(63,789) (44,112) (15,478) (4,739) (799)
(48,299) (52,660) (82,781) (39,528) (58,896)
(44,775) - (316,841) (683,326) (146,001)
(3,225) - (15,261) (27,558) (1,197)
= = = (3,121) S
= = = (107,055) S
= = = (89,915) S
= = = (4,795) S
= = = = (972)
= = = (2,540) (189,649)
= = (89,931) (66) S
- - (13,036) (4,544) (9,877)
978) (2,241) (2,117) (12,695) (15,975)
- - (105) - -
(41,196) 57,575 (503,398) (1,034,856) (183,692)
(2,833) (16,372) 107,140 (116,888) (46,063)
(44,029) 41,203 (396,258) (1,151,744) (229,755)
(44,029) 41,203 (396,258) (1,151,744) (229,755)
RMB(2.6) cents RMB2.4 cents  RMB(20.0) cents ~ RMB(47.8) cents ~ RMB(7.7) cents
ARE(2.6)9 ARE245  ARB005  ARBE787 ARET.)A
EERERE
As at 31 December
IRTT= 7 ==
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—ElE =i “ENE =2 £ AL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AR®ETTT
1,684,042 1,694,932 1,388,287 531,052 365,730
(132,655) (149,467) (149,870) (311,827) (294,203)
1,451,387 1,545,465 1,238,417 219,225 71,527
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